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In 2017, Thailand’s economy continued to expand considerably,
due mainly to exports and the manufacturing sector, especially tourism,
service and MICE industries generating a large amount of revenue for
the Thai economy. Moreover, the continuous expansion of the country’s
economy was backed by the government’s Thailand 4.0 policy and the
development of the Special Economic Zones (SEZ) to support every
kind of investment.

Above all, the Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) project covering
Chachoengsao, Chon Buri and Rayong Provinces provides a promising
opportunity for MICE business as the project includes the development
of U-Tapao Airport and Laem Chabang Deep Sea Port, the high-speed
train development project, the transportation network and the
infrastructure development project, as well as attractive tax measures.
These development projects will motivate businessmen and MICE
visitors to invest and host business-oriented meetings or trade shows
in these areas.

As a result, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public
Organization) or TCEB improved its MICE-driven strategy in accordance
with the government’s policy and included it in the five-year MICE
model scheme.

The MICE business is now playing an important role in Thai society.
Over the past 10 years, Thailand earned income of approximately THB
150,000 million from domestic and international MICE business, created
employment opportunities of roughly 164,000 positions, and generated
tax from business of about THB 10,500 million.

In addition, Thailand was ranked as among the countries organising
the most international association meetings by the International Congress
and Convention Association (ICCA) in 2016. The organisation of 151
meetings made Thailand jump in rank from the No. 27 to No. 24. In
2015, the Global Association of the Exhibition Industry (UFI) ranked
Thailand as ASEAN’s leading country with the exhibition space. sold
and first of five countries in ASEAN for total exhibition space. Besides,
Thailand has extensive trade show area - 244,323 square metres among
nine convention centres in Bangkok and major MICE cities.

It was a great pleasure that the TCEB Board of Directors appointed
Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya, who has worked with TCEB for a
long time, as our new President. Mr. Chiruit is a young and active
executive, who has extensive expertise in the MICE business. | am
positively confident that the policy, which he proposed to the TCEB’s
Board of Directors, on promoting, driving and enhancing Thailand to



become a world leader in the MICE business, developing collaboration of TCEB’s network including public and private agencies, generating income
and boosting the provincial economy through the MICE business, together with leveraging innovations to support event organisation will be
successfully achieved. This policy will create and boost our competitiveness with other countries and certainly meet next year’s goal.

I would like to express my appreciation to the public and private sectors, the press and academic institutes for their active collaboration for
development of the MICE business. | would also like to extend my moral support to the new President of TCEB for his challenging role and express
my heartfelt gratitude to the TCEB’s Board of Directors and TCEB staff for their close collaboration in driving Thailand’s MICE business to the global
level. | do believe in your determined efforts and potential in achieving this goal.

wiswgnalned w.a. 2560 ﬁmimmaéﬁaénmLﬁaﬂmaiﬁ%’uﬁﬁaaﬁuaumWﬂﬂﬁdaaaﬂLLa“mﬂmswﬁmﬁﬂﬁmq Tnglanzanuinsvieiion Unig warludid
mum&ﬂmﬂmﬂEJ"LmamiwmmaQUiuwm nevsiuulenelvauaud 4.0 LLaumiamwumﬁummmﬁﬂawmmaw%maimaaaummwwmufuuq Tngiannzlasanis
seifvavniasugioniang usen wie EEC gasifulontavosgsialud u 9.221unsn 9.9au3 way 933804 fen1senseduauudugnzini uagvinidouvanads
Imqmiwwmsmivmammqq Iﬂsqmiwwuﬂmqmamuﬂmmﬂmazlﬂsqaswawugm ifmmﬂ'ﬁgﬂﬁmﬂamumammmsmqmﬂmaq Huidulenavesinfun
nauladfiazanamu Ussu vidednnudssialuiiuivend 4 aavu. isfifinsufuunuiuindeulisidenauiamsdguiauasldussquaud joanisluumus)
ungsnaludsses 5 U

ludgasiiudosddyvosdinilneogieg o sl 9nadlusey 10 Pk wuinssmealneiingldangsiludisluiasieUssmalssuio
150,000 &11U19 @¥198mTIEUTINLUTEING 164,000 FU uazyarnn1§NgRaUTEANN 10,500 STUUW uenand SlinasuiinBufifilul wa. 2559
aunesUseynuumAvestan wie ICCA dasusulnelinduisliosdifidnounisdaussyugsds 151 0w TneiAulngdusud 24 anndududl 27 15led w.a. 2558
Funsuansdudumund aneudunsiansdudsedulan wie UF Wlnefindudu 1 vesendoulusuiuiimeavdvesmssnauuandudn duiuiidamy
uansAudlnesaniy Ussmdlnefndudy 1 1u 5 veuede uonani Ussmdlvedsdfuiinudmiuinmuuanidudigeis 244,323 ssans Tu 9 audussa
Tungamnne wazidlaaluddnday

uagtfuihinBudBeillul we. 2560 anznssuns davu. Wusiats wedged Sasns w eysen Atuidugnulioves aauu. Wiksshuminnems aalu.
vl Benldinduauminliusauasfanudgyfugsivludiuesied uasnudesiuniut deulsueivinulfiausliiuamgnssunts aauu. vansduads
avduauu nandu wazenseaulivssmalnedufihludlunilan nsiauesetisanusuiiovemihsnunedy uasnAwLNTY N1INTTBATYFIINILGIND
ludggiine u3e mslduinnssmndaaiumstanudu Sruduideimiia fadannuaunsadunstdutuissmadug uasillidmns sl
Hulugdelaly

nuda9uBYaUANMINEIIUNIATE AALEnYY Aounavy santunisAnuiiidieauiioruincuiewaugshaludegrafuiids uazveliingele
vinugduaenis aavu. viwlvsl dududnfivesaanudimie sauisvevaunm amziuims wazdmiinfives aavu. yvinuiildsautiosaulandndu
Uszinalnagaanansludszaulan nudeivlundauazainuanansaveayniituau

@@,ﬁ/é

r. Weerasak Kowsurat
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

ugls:zAnna TAdasnu
UsysunssumsduaiunMsdnU sy ingsanig
dinnuduasunisdnlseguuasingsenis (e9An1sumyy)

sraguds=Adsuds=uitu w.A. 2560
ddnaudaasumsinus=guuaztinssANs (9IANISUKIBU)




THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
(PUBLIC ORGANIZATION) ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Thailand’s MICE business expanded satisfactorily in both domestic
and international markets during fiscal 2017. Even more impressive was
the many international agencies involved in the MICE business that
selected Thailand to host their events. This greatly emphasised on
Thailand’s strong potential and enhanced the value of the Thai MICE
business. In addition, TCEB initiated many new and practical approaches
that utilised the MICE business’s strength to provide substantial support
for the country’s development strategy.

During Fiscal 2017, TCEB formulated new strategies for the MICE
business to be in accordance with the 20 year national strategic framework,
which emphasises on generating greater revenue, developing the country
through innovations and bringing economic prosperity to every segment
of society. As a result, TCEB encouraged the MICE business to become
a major driving force for Thailand’s economic development, providing
sustainable income distribution to residents in provincial areas.

In Fiscal 2017, Thailand attracted 1,047,950 international MICE
travellers, generating revenue of THB 86,188 million, an increase of over
6%, in terms of visitor numbers and income, when compared to the
previous year. Travellers for international conventions were the largest
number of visitors to Thailand, followed by visitors for incentive travel,
corporate meetings, and international exhibitions.

Asia was Thailand’s major source of MICE visitors, especially China,
India, Singapore, Malaysia, South Korea, Japan, Hong Kong, and Indonesia,
etc. Thailand hosted 14 important events including Southeast Asia
Herbalife Extravaganza Infinitus - an event for direct sales companies;
PCMA Global Professionals Conference Asia Pacific 2017 - an international
conference for USA’s professional associations, which was held for the
first time in Thailand and Asia; and UIA Round Table Asia Pacific 2017,
organised by the Union of International Associations or UIA.

The domestic market attracted 35,316,508 MICE travellers, generating
revenue of THB 91,142 million, an increase of over 20% in terms of visitor
numbers and income over the previous year. International exhibitions
attracted the largest number of visitors, followed by international
conventions, corporate meetings and incentive travel respectively.

TCEB supported many domestic campaigns, including “Following in His
Majesty the Late King’s Footsteps, Meeting in Thailand, Following Royal
Initiatives”, a campaign to bolster awareness among private agencies to
organise their meetings or seminars at the Royal Initiatives Projects throughout
the country; Thailand Domestic MICE Mart, which was organised for
the fourth consecutive time in MICE cities to enhance organisation standards,
as well as provide support and opportunity for MICE entrepreneurs.



TCEB also encouraged the organisation of MICE events in the Special Economic Zones (SEZ) and many provinces with potential to facilitate GMS
and CLMV markets in order to provide opportunities for MICE business development in provincial areas.

MICE development in 2017 saw the encouraging progress of the ASEAN MICE Venue Standard (AMVS) project when the ASEAN Tourism Forum
(ATF 2017) hosted in Singapore granted approval for ASEAN member countries to adopt AMVS. AMVS was developed from the Thailand MICE Venue
Standard (TMVS) initiated by Thailand under TCEB’s guidance. This immense success introduced Thailand as an important player in the development
of ASEAN’s MICE business.

In MICE education, TCEB accelerated its efforts to create MICE professionals, setting its goal to create at least 20,000 graduates through its MICE
Academy & Career Day project, to be recruited into the MICE business by 2021. This will drive sustainable growth of the Thai MICE business and
promote Thailand to become the centre for ASEAN’s MICE education.

Additionally, using the SMART MICE concept, TCEB has encouraged entrepreneurs in the MICE business to capitalise on advanced technologies
and innovations when organising MICE events for better cost and time efficiency. The leverage of innovations is in line with the latest global trend
in organising international MICE events, encouraging entrepreneurs to broaden their experience in organising creative and interesting MICE events.

In 2018, TCEB plans to develop Thailand’s MICE industry with innovations so as to create prosperity and generate greater income by identifying
four core approaches, which are: the MICE industry’s growth in parallel with the country’s development; the MICE industry’s growth in potential
markets, stressing strong growth regions that relate to and support the development of the country’s economy; Equal growth to expand opportunities
for the MICE industry to properly develop in several key provinces, which are now revealing their increasing roles in developing the economy; and
the MICE industry’s further growth by developing TCEB’s internal operation system, in conjunction with revised organisation, rules and regulations,
in order to facilitate future implementation more efficiently.

For 2018, TCEB has set its goal to enhance Thailand’s economy by generating revenue of THB 174,000 million from 30.19 million travellers. The
number of travellers can be classified into: 1,192,000 international MICE travellers, generating revenue of THB 112,000 million; and 29 million domestic
MICE travellers, generating revenue of THB 62,000 million.

On behalf of TCEB, | would like to express my gratitude to TCEB Board of Directors and TCEB staff, as well as the public and private sectors,
academic institutes and the press for their continued support and great cooperation in collectively developing Thailand’s MICE business. | firmly
believe that the MICE business will thrive positively and be a major driving force for developing the country’s economy and offering opportunity
to residents of provincial areas for their benefit and happiness.
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Vision, Mission and Goals

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) or TCEB is a government agency under the supervision of the Office of the Prime
Minister, established by Royal Decree as published in the Royal Thai Government Gazette on 28 September 2002. It has been in operation since 2004.

TCEB has played an important role in developing and successfully growing business events held in Thailand, including meetings, incentives, conventions,
and exhibitions, widely known as the MICE business.

Since its inception, TCEB has unerringly following its mission guidelines that include attracting MICE events to Thailand, promoting the country’s
image as a preferred MICE destination, boosting venue capacities and competitiveness of Thailand’s MICE business, and elevating the standards of
MICE professionals and structures. Moreover, TCEB has forged business alliances with many agencies in the government and private sectors, with
academic institutes and the media by raising standards and developing regulations to facilitate MICE services.

TCEB also serves as a centre of MICE knowledge and a source of inspiration in organising business events with creativity. Additionally, TCEB
encourages innovation and sustainability in the organisation of MICE events in a bid to distribute income throughout the nation and stimulate
the central and provincial economies. Such mission is in accordance with the 20-year national strategic framework that reinforces the country’s
security, prosperity, and sustainability under the philosophy of sufficiency economy.

Strategies for MICE Industry Promotion in Accordance with the Master Plan

Vision

A major agency that leverages innovations
in driving the Thai MICE business to develop
the country’s economy in order to distribute
income to every sector in a sustainable manner.

Mission

» To foster the organisation of MICE events
in Thailand in order to stimulate the country’s
economy and distribute income to commmunities.

» To enhance the image of Thailand’s MICE
industry through products, premium services
and unique Thai-ness.

* To develop Thailand’s MICE industry
through knowledge, standards, as well as the
development of quality MICE professionals.

» To promote sustainability in MICE events
in order to create competitive advantages.

Goals

» To generate income and develop the
country’s economy.

« To develop the country with innovation.

» To create prosperity and distribute income
to every sector of the Thai society.

To promote Thailand’s MICE industry, TCEB has determined five strategies in line with the

bureau’s vision, mission and goals as follows:

Win

Strategy 1: Driving the country’s economy
through the MICE industry

+ Consolidate and develop the existing MICE
activities to achieve stability and sustainability.

* Promote new MICE activities with other
government agencies to jointly support the
country’s target industries.

* Drive new MICE activities to meet market
demands and the country’s potential and policy.

Strategy 2: Distributing income and stimulating
the provincial economy through the MICE industry

* Elevate regional MICE activities to motivate
the provincial economy.

* Develop MICE activities to decrease the social
inequality in provincial areas.

Promote

Strategy 3: Promoting marketing and the images
of Thailand’s MICE industry and TCEB

* Promote marketing campaigns and enhance
Thailand’s image as an international MICE destination.

» Change the viewpoint of other organisations

towards TCEB’s role and branding image.

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
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* Publicise the potential and facilities of cities
that are ready to accommodate MICE activities at
both national and international levels.

Develop

Strategy 4: Boosting capacities and
competitiveness of the MICE industry

* Enhance the standards of MICE professionals
and structures that support Thailand’s MICE
industry.

» Encourage innovations in organising MICE
events and further improve knowledge and
patterns of event organisation.

» Uplift standards and improve regulations
in relation to Thailand’s MICE industry.

» Strengthen networks of cooperation
through the MICE platform.

Strategy 5: Enhancing the efficiency of TCEB’s
internal operation

« Raise the proficiency of TCEB personnel to
enhance further development of the bureau.

» Develop and leverage innovations in order
to increase the efficiency of TCEB’s operation
under the principles of good corporate governance.
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Organisation Chart
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Marketing and
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91978
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Promotion
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GRSV NGEY
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Convention

Marketing and
-+ Support Section
GNP TRRINEE
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Exhibition
Promotion
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AMIIAUERIFUA
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Exhibition
Marketing and
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Mega Project
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Marketing
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MICE Network
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Branding
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Marketing
Communication
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N13INAN

Corporate
Communication
Section
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Event
Management
Section
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ASAAN

Corporate Policy
and Strategy
Section
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UaENAENSBIANS

Planning and
Budgeting
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Research and
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Internal Audit Department
fhensavaeungly

Secretary and IT Development Government Accounting Human Development
Co-ordination Section and Corporate Section Resources Section
Section 0 dunuiaun Relations Section 0 gl Section S0 dunuiaun
dnuanuanIuns wialwlagansaume dmnuszie Ay
uazdszanusIuIuns Famfaduiius NENYINTYAAD
Corporate Goal IT Service Mission Support Finance Procurement and Standardization
Monitoring Section and Liaison Section Office Service Section
Section 0 dunuuinns Section — duaumsiu Section 0 dwnunasgiu
dunufanuNa wialulagansaume duauaiuayy dunuianuaz
n1sUfTRUeANT WusNve3ANT usnsdninu
Management Law and Good Service
Accounting and Governance Section
- Financial _ Section S daunuuims
Reporting Section daunungraneg
; drunulTuims UaysITINALIG
NNYNR) et mihsruegnelinsisiutyvuasonuaswiedidudayw LAYSIBUNISEY
—————— el mhenuildldogmeldnstsiuiyruddemenuleyauaslsimuinm
unagy: Tnssasaiufivihenusig 2 e 11 de 30 dawanu mendaliulslassasuludiivihenusin 2 aeou 12 de 31 dawau (Wilusudensieaeuniely)
Note: Departments and sections working under and reporting directly to their heads
—————— Departments not being under control but providing information and consultation
Conclusion: The previous structure consisting of 2 lines, 11 departments and 30 sections has been reorganised as two lines, 12 departments

and 31 sections (excluding the Internal Audit Department).
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Board of Directors

Mr. Weerasak Kowsurat

Chairman of the Board of Directors

urads=Ann 1n2asnu

U9851UNITUNIT
Current Position: fuKUIgAR0U
« Secretary-General, The National « L@VIBATHLNNUSALANN NG UATLAIR
Federation of Mation Pictures - vismsyadsimunauiinislve
and Contents Associations - UsE5IunsINng U MCS alnludu
« Secretary-General, Thai with walulad 911
Disability Foundation - Us851UnIsuN1sNawmu
« Chairman, MCS Automation AaUInusssusivade
Technology Co. Ltd « 509UTE51UNTIUNTT AUIALEILETY
« Chairman, Contemporary andunssunsuSEning (10D)
Art and Culture Fund . N55UNTOETY LavUsysunTINA1S CG / CSR
« Vice Chairman, Thai Institute USEnvannsng 1ad% 31im (W)
Directors Association . nsuMsandeUaenstuazaiisasse
* Independent Director and Chairman . NIsUMSAENUMINESeBaLisuerde (EAU)
of Corporate Governance and . NITUNTANUNINGIELUDTNNTANN (SBAC)
Corporate Social Responsibility - AvFnndinanianngsnssy
Committee, AEC Securities Public MedEnNMseiing (29An1suMITL)
Company Limited . fSnwdinanungmngaina
« Board member, Safe and Creative agunsiles Iin
Media Development Fund (SCF) . fiinwanznIsunsloduTnuiend

« Board member, Eastern Asia University . WuRSANNTN AaILASedURN LA AY
« Board member, North Eastern University — U584m84 (APRC)
« Advisor, Office of The Electronic
Transactions Commission
« Advisor, Siam Premier International
Law Office Limited
« Advisor, National Olympic Committee
* Member of Asian Peace and Reconciliation
Council (APRC)
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Board of Directors

Mrs. Malee Choklumlerd
Board member
Current Position

Director-General, Department of

International Trade Promotion

Ms. Busadee Santipitaks

Board member

Current Position

Director-General, Department of Information and

Spokesperson of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Mr. Vichak Apirugnunchai

Board member

Current Position

Principal Advisor on Duty Collection
Management & Development Department

Mr. Yuthasak Supasorn
Board member

Current Position

Governor, Tourism Authority of Thailand

Ms. Supawan Tanomkieatipume
Board member

Current Position

President, Thai Hotel Association (THA)
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Mrs. Pornthip Hirunkate

Board member

Current Position

Vice President, Thailand Incentive and
Convention Association (TICA)

Mrs. Prapee Buri

Board member

Current Position

President, Thailand Exhibition Association (TEA)

Mr. Thongchai Sridama
Board member

Current Position

Board of Directors, Suan Dusit University Council

Dr. Rutchaneeporn Pookayaporn
Board member

Current Position

President, Sripatum University

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya
Board member and Secretary

Current Position

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition
Bureau (Public Organization)
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TCEB’s Subcommittees

Strategic Planning & Risk Management Subcommittee

ﬂmzaqnisumsnaqws‘uazuwumu HAZAITUSUITANULEES

1 Mr. Yuthasak Supasorn WEMsANA qnas

2 Ms. Supawan Tanomkieatipume WNEIANITIN AUBUNYTANI

3 Mrs. Prapee Buri ANTEEATERTE

4 Mrs. Pornthip Hirunkate wnsiing #sgineg

5 Asst. Prof. Sopapan Amatadecha HY8A1ANTINTELANNTIU BURTIATE
6 Mrs. Suchada Yuvaboon UGV Eg’J‘Uﬁﬂj

7 Mrs. Pojai Pookakupt wanela wnneAUd

CEO Evaluation Subcommittee

AMAUNTTUNTUSEIUNANTTURURMULBUIENT devu.

1 Mr. Thongchai Sridama UNYTITY ATATLN

2 Mrs. Prapee Buri weUsens U3

3 Mrs. Pornthip Hirunkate WINTANE ATaYene

4 Asst. Prof. Sopapan Amatadecha I};T NYANENTINTOANINTT DUAZLATE

Administrative Systems Development Subcommittee

ﬂmzam}nssumsﬁ'&umizuuu’%ms

1 Mr. Thongchai Sridama WI5ITE AINIUT

2 Mr. Sugree Sithivanich weAN3e Ansatv

3 Mrs. Prapee Buri UNUIENS U3

4 Mr. Surapong Techaruvichit WILFINY L0Yen3INg

5 Mr. Paisit Kaenchan wglndy wnuduni

6 Mrs. Suprabha Moleeratanond UG T snuun

7 Mr. Banyat Kalasuwan WUAR NWEITI

8 Asst. Prof. Dr. Nipapan Kuwisetsang HYIeransasd as. dANINTTMN AILABLAS
9 Mrs. Jariya Muangkaew 199387 UNUM

10 Mr. Vijit Phiphadkusolkul W3 MimsnAana
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TCEB’s Subcommittees

Government Coordination on MICE Service Providers Subcommittee

ANZBUNTINNTUTLENUNUNIATT LNBN1T81UIBANUEZAINTAILNITAT WazuInTgaavnssulud

- President of the
1 Mr. Akapol Sorasuchart UBBIIANG ATEHUIH Subcommittee UszsIUoYNTIUNT
2 Asst. Prof. Pongchat Athikomrattanakul, Ph.D. HYeeNans19158 A3, wawde eSaushuna Subcommittee BUNTIUNIT
3 ggﬁgtﬁ;? 2%:{%' 8; ;hﬁegr%ggﬁggcg of BBUANTUNNINIGA W30 Hunu Subcommittee BUNTTUNNT
4 B;rgcrtg[;rgggr?trgtl|\?g the Department of Excise BBUANIUATINGNN YiTe Huny Subcommittee BUNTTUNNT
5 ngeﬁ;%rﬁgggrglr gfrte%?ezgﬁgmg nt of BBUANTUNNTARNUTENA 1130 Bl Subcommittee BUNTINNNS
Secretary-General of the Office of the National LAYITNITATUNUAENTTUNITAANIG '
6 Broadcasting and Telecommunications nsredes Aamsinsiimivazianis Subcommittee BUNTINNNS
Commission (NBTC) or a representative WNSANWIANLAINRA (NANY.) Y8 Funu
Secretary-General of the Food and Drug @y BMsETnNUAMENISIANTE M THATEN -
" Administration or a representative vdo funu Supcommitiee - oynzNs
Secretary-General of the Thai Industrial wuBnsdinesnsguNEne -
8 Standards Institute or a representative apavnsI Wia Gy Supcommitiee - oynzNTS
9 gﬁggs;gggﬁgii%e Imrmigration Bureau Atyrmsdninnunsisnudiiies vise dumu  Subcommittee BUNTINNTT
General Manager of Suvarnabhumi Yo . . -
10 Airport or a representative HemnemsvhormAeugassund vie Junu Subcommittee UNTIUNIT
General Manager of Don Mueang Yo . o e -

1 International Airport or a representative NOIUILNITINOINIAY TUADULLIDY Y30 HIVIY Subcommittee UNTIUNIT
12 Director of Suvarnabhumi Airport Cargo . HOUIEMTENUNTIUAANINIATITAUA Subcommittee SUnSSUNTS
Clearance Customs Bureau or a representative YMRINNALTUEITIEUNU 919D WU i

Director of Laem Chabang Port Customs HesnmsdinauganinsiiZeurauad :
13 Bureau or a representative kD QLmu Subcommittee ORI
Commander of Immigration Division 2 HUIAUNMIATIIAUILETRY 2 :
14 (Suvarnabhumi Airport’s Arrival) or a representative  (suniiranssaigi) vide funu Subcommittee oynIIUNTT
15 Eg%%(yrﬁggtegl aorggége%qgg\%em of BIUANTUNNTIANINU Y38 Hunu Subcommittee BUNTINNT
16 ﬂ&%ﬁ%&?ﬁ;ﬁ;@l grfgqu?‘gggrrﬁ?t?vrg of B3UANTUITNURAAMNTTH YiT0 FUN Subcommittee BUNIIUNNT
g7 Govemor of the Bangkok Metropolitan HINTININTINNIVUAT Y30 BNy Subcommittee AUNTTUNNT

Administration (BMA) or a representative
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dunaudiasumsinus=guuazinssAMs (9IANISUKIBU)

17




President

HE1U8N1S

Work Experiences

« Vice President, Administration and
Strategic Support, Thailand Convention
and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

« Director, Domestic MICE Department,
Thailand Convention and Exhibition
Bureau (Public Organization)

» Director of Government & Corporate
Affairs, Thailand Convention and
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

« Senior Manager, Meeting & Incentive
Department, Thailand Convention and
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

» Tourism Authority of Thailand
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Management Team

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya
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Management Team

Mrs. Supawan Teerarat

Vice President, Strategic and Business Development

Work Experience
Director, Exhibition Department, TCEB

Mr. Chatri Thongnak

Director, Internal Audit Department

Work Experience

Senior Manager, Law and Good

Governance, Administration Department, TCEB

Ms. Nooch Homrossukhon

Director, Meeting and Incentive Department
Work Experience

Senior Manager, Meeting and Incentive
Department, TCEB

Ms. Vichaya Soonthornsaratoon
Director, Convention Department
Work Experience

Director, Meeting Industry
Department, TCEB

Mrs. Jaruwan Suwannasat

Director, Exhibition & Event Department
Work Experience

Senior Manager, Exhibition Department, TCEB

UNJANJSSIU As=Sau
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Us=3imsrinnu

81385 ANYRAAMNTTUNITUAREUAUINIYG daUu.
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Mr. Puripan Bunnag

Director, Domestic MICE Department
Work Experience

Senior Manager, Meeting and Incentive
Department, TCEB

Ms. Parichat Svetasreni

Director, Marketing and Corporate Image Department
Work Experience

Senior Manager, Public Relations Division,
Marketing Communication Department, TCEB

Mrs. Orachat Leingpeboon

Director, Corporate Strategy Development Department
Work Experience

Manager, Electronic Government Policy Section, Digital

Government Development Agency (Public Organization)

Mr. Chartchai Debpang

Director, TCEB President’s Office Department
Work Experience

Director, Government and Corporate Affairs
Department, TCEB

Mrs. Sarita Chintakanond

Director, Information Technology Department
Work Experience

Senior Manager, Corporate Strategy
Development Department, TCEB
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Ms. Wiparat Tharateerapab

Director, Government and Corporate
Affairs Department

Work Experience

Director, Administration Department, TCEB

Ms. Jutharat Vorrarith

Director, Accounting and Finance Department

Work Experience
Senior Manager, Accounting and Finance
Department, TCEB

Mr. Salanroj Sutaschuto
Director, Administration Department
Work Experience

Director, Board Coordinating
Department, TCEB

Mrs. Nichapa Yoswee

Director, MICE Capability Department
Work Experience

Managing Director, Thailand and Vietnam,
Reed Tradex Co., Ltd.
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Overseas Representatives

Kumi lkeda Nitin Sachdeva Stella Tsitsipatis Charles Leong
Japan India North Americas Singapore
MICE Japan Co, Ltd. Venture Marketing Development Counselor International (OC) ~ The Tourism Company Pte. Ltd.

(For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Meetings & Incentives Industry)

Lindsey Thorpe Eric Zhu Nicole Tingey Daniella Middleton
Europe China Australia USA
Hills Balfour Ltd. Arch International Media Ltd. ClockWise Consulting Development Counsellors International
(For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Meetings & Incentives Industry) (For Conventions Industry)

Sachin Manocha Mark Cochrane Evan Li
India China, Hong Kong, China, Hong Kong,
AVIGHNA Macau, and Taiwan Macau, and Taiwan
(For Exhibitions |ndustry) Business Strategies Group Ltd. Business Strategies Group Ltd.
(For Exhibitions Industry) (For Exhibitions Industry)
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MICE Trends in 2018

The global MICE business is very likely to continue developing and
expanding in a positive manner. However, exhibitors and organisers should
take other factors into consideration, together with the new-style
organisation of MICE events, in order to best respond to the demands
of clients. Such factors involve event organisation that meets acceptable
international standards of construction, venue development, convenient
transportation for event participants and visitors, F&B and entertainment,
as well as environmental awareness. In addition, the development of
information technology, particularly internet access, will enable MICE
organisers to create an online network and share relevant information
and useful knowledge to all event participants. The ‘SMART’ registration
system not only assists event organisers, but also adds value to their
organisation. Above all, the leverage of social media greatly enhances
the efficiency of event organisation in terms of activity dissemination,
creating real-time video, and so on.

For the meetings and incentives segment, the major factor influencing
the decision to select a destination is venue, both existing and newly-built,
that can best respond to their demands. It must be a multi-purpose
venue that can be easily adapted to meet various requirements.

For conventions, the trend focuses mainly on a hybrid-style meeting
incorporating a live stream and an innovative virtual reality. This can
be clearly seen in 2015, when TCEB held an industry workshop that linked
to the annual ICCA Research, Sales and Marketing programme held in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands. Another example is the meeting of the
Australian Veterinary Association. Although the number of activities did
not increase, the live streaming of the meeting on its website in past
years helped to involve many more members. Clearly state-of-the-art
technology helps to facilitate the live streaming of meetings via website
and also saves budget, especially for those who are unable to attend
the meeting.

ddnaudnasumsinds=guuaztinssANs (9JANISUKIBU)
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MICE Trends in 2018

The world-class exhibitions segment is another industry that is growing
in a fast-paced manner, generating substantial income for the country.
Therefore, entrepreneurs in this segment must continue to develop their
organisation all the time as their clients pay close attention to use of
the latest technology in exhibitions. In addition, they expect to earn
more tangible benefits from Return on Investment (ROI), as well as
expanding their database and efficient systematic follow-up.

The direction of the MICE business in 2018 must place a great emphasis
on MICE development to be consistent with Thailand’s development
plan for 2015-2020 that envisages the country achieving stability,
prosperity and sustainability. In addition, the development direction must
be in accordance with the nation’s Sufficiency Economy Philosophy and
Thailand 4.0 policy in promoting knowledge and creating innovations and
value so as to encourage Thailand to become a high income country.

The MICE business is considered one of the significant economic
foundations of the Thailand 4.0 model. It also serves as a platform to
exchange knowledge among MICE event participants, who tap these
opportunities to improve their capacity and, in turn, develop their products
and services or create innovations. Additionally, the MICE business helps
build networks of those who are in the same field of knowledge, which
can lead to mutual collaboration and development in the future.

Industries that operate under the Thailand 4.0 model include five
major sectors or so-called ‘First S-Curves’ which are: the next-generation
automotive industry; the smart electronics industry; high-income tourism
and medical tourism industries; advanced agriculture and biotechnology
industries; and the future food industry. To a certain extent, the ‘First
S-Curves’ are operating successfully. However, they need to add more
value and boost their capacity to compete internationally by conducting

research and developing innovative technologies.

Five new industries, called the ‘New S-Curves’ with the potential and
capabilities to compete internationally include: robotics for industrial
use; the aviation and logistics industries; the biofuel and biochemical
industries; the digital Industry; and the comprehensive healthcare industry.
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In 2019 the MICE business will place strong emphasis on the Eastern
Economic Corridor (EEC) project, which is an international strategic
development under the Thailand 4.0 policy. The EEC has been established
in line with government policy to create a development centre
throughout the EEC area, covering Chachoengsao, Chon Buri and Rayong
Provinces. These three provinces are designated to be a hub for modern
trade and tourism. Moreover, the EEC serves as a pilot project for the
nation’s Special Economic Zones to support the development of MICE
businesses in provincial areas, which are growing by leaps and bounds.
This is due mainly to upgrading the standards of U-Tapao Airport and
Laem Chabang Deep Sea Port, the high-speed train development project,
the transportation network and the infrastructure development project,
while motivating investors with attractive tax measures. These development
projects will result in the growth of the MICE business in Chachoengsao
Province, Pattaya in Chon Buri Province, and Rayong Province as they
will provide attractive destinations for businessmen and MICE visitors.
Such growth also encourages the tangible success of government policy

on income distribution from the MICE business to the regional areas.

Apart from the EEC, the Cluster-based Special Economic Zones
covering 33 provinces across the country are now extending their
powerful influence to Thailand’s other MICE cities in Chiang Mai, Khon
Kaen and Phuket, as well as provinces that have potential to be

developed as future hubs of the MICE business.
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The Success of Thailand’s MICE Business in Fiscal 2017

During Fiscal 2017, TCEB encouraged the Thai MICE business to be a major force in driving the country’s economy. The bureau implemented

its tasks in accordance with the Fiscal 2017 annual budget plan under the 2017 - 2021 MICE industry strategic plan and the 20-year mission

plan (2017 to 2036), which are in line with the 20-year national strategy and the 12" National Economic and Social Development Plan. In this

way, TCEB integrated all policies for “Enhancing Competitiveness and Encouraging MICE Activities to Create Opportunities for Industries

Under the Thailand 4.0 Policy”

Having positioned MICE as a significant mechanism for developing the country, TCEB adopted 4 core approaches for developing stability,
prosperity and sustainability in the Thai MICE business:

1 Approach: MICE industry’s growth in
parallel with the country’s development focused
on sustaining existing markets and looking for new
potential markets in order to develop the country’s
economy, in conjunction with adding the MICE
business to the country’s targeted industries,
according to Thailand 4.0 policy and Special
Economic Zones (SEZ);

2nd Approach: MICE business growth in
potential markets Stressed strong growth regions
that relate to and support the development of the
country’s economy including ASEAN, Greater
Mekong Subregion (GMS), East/South Asia and
Australia/New Zealand;

31 Approach: Equal growth t0 expand
opportunities for the MICE business to properly
develop in several key provinces, which are now
revealing their increasing roles in developing the
economy, such as Chiang Mai, Khon Kaen, Chon
Buri (Pattaya), Phuket, and Songkhla;

4t Approach: MICE industry’s further
growth to develop TCEB’s internal operation
system, in conjunction with revised organisation,
rules and regulations in order to facilitate future

implementation more efficiently.

Having implemented its responsibilities to drive both domestic and international MICE
markets, TCEB strictly adhered to its four approaches during Fiscal 2017, which successfully
met its goals as follows:

International MICE Market

Thailand welcomed 1,047,959 international MICE travellers, who helped to generate
revenue of THB 88,459 million. The number of MICE travellers can be divided into: Meetings
- 259,901 participants generating THB 26,749 million in revenue; Incentives - 271,793 visitors
with THB 16,696 million in revenue; Conventions - 300,273 participants with THB 26,145
million in revenue; and Exhibitions - 215,992 participants generating THB 18,869 million in
revenue. The expenditure of each participant averaged about THB 82,000 per trip.

Overview of International MICE Performance in Fiscal 2017
(October 2016 to September 2017)

Number of MICE Travellers Revenue (THB million)

Meetings 259,901 26,749
Incentives 271,793 16,696
Conventions 300,273 26,145
Exhibitions 215,992 18,869
Total 1,047,959 88,459

(Remarks: Excludes Mega Events)
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The Success of Thailand’s MICE Business in Fiscal 2017

The Success of Domestic MICE Market

In Fiscal 2017, there were 35,316,508 domestic MICE participants, who generated THB 91,142 million in revenue. Per sector, Meetings attracted
2,776,453 visitors with THB 4,229 million; Incentives 153,492 visitors with THB 438 million; Conventions 3,416,462 visitors with THB 4,661 million;
and Exhibitions 28,970,101 visitors with THB 81,814 million.

Overview of Domestic MICE Performance in Fiscal 2017
(October 2016 to September 2017)

Number of MICE Travellers Revenue (THB million)

Meetings 2,776,453 4,229
Incentives 153,492 438

Conventions 3,416,462 4,661
Exhibitions 28,970,101 81,814
Total 35,316,508 91,142

TCEB’s major activities were operated and accomplished by the following departments:
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Marketing and Corporate Image Department

An overview of the successful performance of Marketing and Corporate Image Department can be classified into four aspects, as follows:

Marketing and Branding

In Fiscal 2017, TCEB continued to develop Thailand MICE United
campaign for the fourth year in a row. Under the concept “Driving
Thailand’s economy and creating sustainability for MICE business” in
line with the 2017-2021 MICE industry strategic plan, this campaign
collaborated with various TCEB alliances to develop and introduce
innovations, products and services to stimulate growth of the MICE
business in a sustainable manner.

In addition, TCEB joined hands with two major alliances, Airports
of Thailand Public Co. Ltd. (AOT) and King Power International Co. Ltd.,
to launch a sales promotion package called Thaitand CONNECT Welcome
Package Ill - Airport Services. ThiS focuses on offering exceptional
privileges and services at Suvarnabhumi Airport in Bangkok. Its objective
was to attract potential MICE organisers and visitors to host and attend
MICE activities held in Thailand. To achieve this, the package offered
discounts on products at participating shops in King Power Duty Free
Shop, coupled with discounts on services at Miracle Lounge and special
room offers at Miracle Transit Hotel in Suvarnabhumi Airport, plus
many more benefits.

Under Thailand’s MICE branding, TCEB introduced a public
communication campaign in Fiscal 2017 called “Thailand CONNECT,
Your Vibrant Journey to Business Success” With the aim of highlighting
Thailand as a top destination in the region for business and leisure with
three outstanding advantages - destinations, business opportunities
and professional personnel.

Corporate Communications

Corporate communications is aimed at increasing awareness of TCEB’s
missions and performance, as well as the importance of the MICE business
among target groups (public and private organisations, associations,
and academic institutes) by promoting important activities through
domestic and international media. The following important activities
took place:
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Domestic Corporate Communications Activities: press conferences and
familiarisation programmes for domestic media across the nation.
Outstanding PR presentations:

Public Relations and Corporate

Date Communications Activities

Press conference: The 12 World Film Festival
of Bangkok

12 October 2016

19 October 2016 Media interview on Creative Thailand 2016

Press conference: The overview of online
8 November 2016 marketing performance during the fiscal year

and the launch of Smart Biz Event Application

Media interview on the support for hosting
ITU World Telecom 2016

14 November 2016

Media interview on the support for hosting
Honda LPGA Thailand 2016

22 November 2016

Media interview on the MICE Business driving
Plan 2016

22 December 2016

Press conference: International Exhibition
27 January 2017 Promotion Plan 2017 and Thailand International

Exhibitions & Events Forum 2017

2017 Media Fam Trip: Pathway to Happiness
2-4 February 2017 according to King Rama IX’s Guidance... MICE

in Nan

Activities for welcoming foreign press from

ASEAN countries and their dialogue partner,
16 February 2017 ) . )

Japan, on the occasion of visiting Thailand for

a seminar session on the MICE industry

Press conference: Direction for developing the
potential of Thailand’s MICE industry
in 2017

17 February 2017
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Marketing and Corporate Image Department

Date

2-3 March 2017

10 March 2017

16 March 2017

17 March 2017

18 - 23 March 2017

22 March 2017

27 March 2017

4 April 2017

21 April 2017

2 May 2017

31 May 2017

Public Relations and Corporate

Communications Activities

Press conference for foreign media and
activity for inviting Thai media to join Thailand
CONNECT: Japan Business Events Road
Show 2017 in Tokyo, Japan

Media interview on “Direction for Improving
the Competence of MICE Personnel in 2017”
and the “3" MICE Career Day”

Press conference: Bangkok Entertainment
Fest 2017

Press conference: Plan on raising the standards
of Thailand’s MICE venues in 2017 and MICE
Standard Day 2017

Activities for inviting Thai media to participate
in IT&CM China 2017 in Shanghai, China

Press Conference: The 4 Thailand
MICE United

Press Conference: ASEAN Rising Trade
Show 2017

Press Conference: Spice Up Thailand 2017

Press Conference: MICE Moves Thailand
Forward 2017

Small session of media interview on
recruitment of TCEB president

Press Conference: The 4™ Thailand
Domestic MICE Mart 2017
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Date

30 June 2017

19 July 2017

20 July 2017

31 July 2017

28 August 2017

19 September 2017

21 September 2017

26 - 29 September 2017

Public Relations and Corporate

Communications Activities

Press Conference: Thailand Incentive and
Meeting Exchange 2017

Press Conference: Directions of TCEB and MICE
industry under the management of TCEB
President, Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun na Ayuthaya

Press Conference: The 12" August Half
Marathon Bangkok 2017

Press Conference: The 4" Thailand
Domestic MICE Mart 2017 in Khon Kaen

Media Interview on PCMA Global Professionals
Conference Asia Pacific 2017

Press Conference: Launch of Following in His
Majesty the Late King’s Footsteps, Meeting in
Thailand, Following Royal Initiatives campaign

Press Conference: UIA Associations Round
Table Asia-Pacific 2017 held for the first time
in Chiang Mai

Press Conference with alliances: IT&CM Asia
and CTW Asia-Pacific 2017
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Marketing and Corporate Image Department

International Public Relations Activities: Main activities to promote Marketing Communications

international media relations in Asia, Europe, the Americas and Oceania Marketing Communications focused on the integrated use of
included: international and domestic media tools to build awareness of the
implementation of TCEB and the Thai MICE industry, which included:

Public Relations and Corporate

bl Communications Activities Domestic Media
+ Production of MICE INSIDE programme, which has been broadcast
18 October 2016 Fress Conference: IMEX America 2016 in Khui Khamong Khao Chao on Channel 9; Kao Khao Chat Social
in Las Vegas, USA on Thairath TV channel; Thup Toh Khao on Amarin TV channel,
Press Conference: IBTM WORLD 2016 Kep Tok from Nation on Nation TV channel; Prakot Kan Khao on
29 November 2016 Spring News channel; Money Morning on Channel 3SD; and

in Barcelona, Spain
Money Daily on Channel 9.

. Press Conference: IT&CM China 2017
22 April 2017

in Shanghai, China « Scoop news in Money Daily programme on Channel 9 and Money

. Delivery programme on Channel TNN24.
Press Conference: Beijing Road Show 2017 in
30 March 2017 Beffing, Cis
’ * Public relations through TV interviews in Marketing Room

Press Conference: World Travel & Tourism programme on Channel TNN24.

26 April 2017 Council - The Global Summit (WTTC)

 Public relations through radio interviews on Ruay Duay Khao
Press Conference: IMEX Frankfurt 2017

16 May 2017 i programme 97.0 FM on air on Saturday to Sunday.
in Frankfurt, Germany

TCEB International Media Familiarisation Trip « Production of radio commercial spots, which have been broadcast
15 - 19 August 2017 2017 on Bangkok — Pattaya, Chon Buri — Hua nationwide including Happy Time 93.5 FM, Khluen KhwamKid
Hin, Prachaup Khiri Khan 96.5 FM, and new station 100.5 FM in Bangkok; Sor Wor Thor

Chiang Mai 98.0 FM in Chiang Mai; Sor Wor Thor Khon Kaen 98.5 FM
in Khon Kaen; Ror Dor Phuket 102.25 FM in Phuket; Sor Thor Ror
Pattaya 104.75 FM in Pattaya; and Sor Thor Ror Udon Thani 93.75 FM
in Udon Thani.

Press Conference: Thailand Communication
26 - 28 September 2017 Campaign 2017 at IT&CM ASIA 2017 for
overseas media

« Public relations through newspapers, 24/7 free weekly magazine,
Ni Krung magazine and Money & Banking magazine.
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Marketing and Corporate Image Department

International Media
+ Preparing both printed media and television programmesamong
internation media in order to reach MICE target groups.

- Media related to MICE business tapping into Asia, Europe and
America markets such as TIME Asia magazine, CEl magazine, Biz
Event Asia magazine, Business Traveller magazine, TTG MICE
magazine, MICE China magazine, Trade Fair magazine, Exhibition
World magazine, etc..

- Media tap to global targets such as 21 Century Business Herald
Newspaper, Sawasdee magazine, CNN and BS Asahi television
stations, etc..

 Building awareness and collaborating with Tourism Authority of
Thailand in promoting the image of Thailand’s MICE business
among the targeted international media such as Japan by

publishing articles on the Nikkei and broadcasting a TV scoop
on BS Asahi television station.

Event Management
Event management focused on promoting marketing promotions
linked to TCEB’s domestic and international activities including the
POP UP THAILAND project, a mobile booth presenting TCEB information
and Thailand identity through cultural activities.
 Trade shows supported by TCEB such as IMEX America 2016,
IBTM World 2016, IT&CM China 2017, IMEX Frankfurt 2017,
IBTM China 2017 and IT&CMA/CTW 2017

« Events supported by TCEB such as Honda LPGA Thailand 2017,
MICE Forum 2017, and Thailand Domestic MICE Mart 2017, and
many other events.

« POP UP THAILAND mobile booths located at UFI Open Seminar
in Asia 2017, Honda LPGA Thailand 2017, Thailand Domestic MICE
Mart 2017, and many other events.
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Meeting and Incentive Department

In Fiscal 2017, Thailand attracted 531,694 travellers from the meeting and incentive travel segment generating THB41,174 million in revenue.
The number of travellers can be classified into: 259,901 travellers for corporate meetings (up by 0.55%), generating revenue of THB24,478 million
(up by 4.4%); and 271,793 incentive travel visitors (up by 3.13%), generating revenue of THB16,696 million (up by 2.95%).

Bidding and Support

1. Domestic Event Support: Operated under the Big Thanks campaign, the department endorsed 117,059 corporate visitors and MICE travellers
from 11 meetings and incentive travel events.

2. Bid Support: The department arranged 5 large-scale meetings and incentive travel events in Thailand, which drew 34,600 MICE travellers.
These highlight events were Anran Nanometer Industry Development Co., Ltd.; Shenzhen Qi Li Enron Management Consulting Co., Ltd.; Infinitus
(China) Overseas Training; Herbalife Southeast Extravaganza; and Jeunesse Expo 2017.

3. Assigsnment of Overseas Agents: There were seven overseas agents in India, Singapore, China, Japan, North America, Australia and Europe.

Marketing and Development

1. Participation in 5 international MICE trade shows - IMEX America 2016, IBTM World 2016, AIME 2017, IT&CM China 2017 and IMEX Frank-
furt 2017.

2. Organised the annual event, Thailand Incentive & Meeting Exchange (TIME), between 30 June and 4 July 2017 at Bangkok Marriott Marquis
Queen’s Park Hotel with the objective of enhancing the marketing experience and potential of Thai entrepreneurs in the meeting and incentive
travel industries to be equivalent to other countries. The event focused on the Indian market. There were 3 key activities: Knowledge Exchange,
a platform to boost Thai entrepreneurs’ potential for competition and understanding of the meeting and incentive travel industry in the target
market; Business Exchange, a stage for table-top sessions to create marketing and sales opportunities for Thai entrepreneurs in the meeting
and incentive travel organisation business for corporate audiences and/or MICE agents from India; and Experience Exchange, a large-scale field
visit for MICE agents in Chiang Mai to consider products and services for meetings and incentives travel.

3. Organised Meet the Reps event on 5 September 2017 at Plaza Athenee Bangkok, Royal Meridien Hotel, with the aim of improving understanding
about marketing and running business in various countries so as to efficiently expand business. There were 168 entrepreneurs from the government
and private sectors involved with the meeting and incentive travel industry who attended the event.

4. Participation in and extending the support for the 25" IT&CM Asia and 20" CTW Asia-Pacific held between 26-28 September 2017 at
Bangkok Convention Centre, CentralWorld. There were 63 booths of Thai MICE entrepreneurs and 2,646 foreign participants from 52 countries.

5. Organised three roadshows in Japan, China and India.
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Meeting and Incentive Department

Marketing and Development (Cont'd)

6. Organised 3 familiarisation and inspection trips to promote the country’s image and potential among international target markets.

7. Compiled a report on the strategic development of Thailand’s meeting and incentive travel industry. Formulated under the Thailand
4.0 policy, this report will be used for following up and analysing the changing situation, as well as developing marketing strategies to be in
line with the situation.

8. Development of marketing promotion tools and media such as sales collateral materials for markets in Japan; Offsite Venue — a marketing
medium gathering comprehensive information of venues apart from general event venues; published Biz Events Asia publication to provide
useful information about Thailand; and introduced M& CONNECT as a publicity tool to communicate with entrepreneurs from the private
sector to keep abreast of the latest information of Thailand’s meeting and incentive travel industry.

9. Maintenance of memberships of key international industry associations, including Society for Incentive Travel Excellence (SITE), Meeting
Professionals International (MPI), and Global Business Travel Association (GBTA). TCEB also participated in 3 annual meetings to enhance knowl-
edge and forge a good relationship with member associations.

10. Planned and executed a sales promotion campaign called Meet by Design to stimulate marketing and sales of gatherings of various
sizes for meetings and incentive travel visitors. For example, MEET NOW campaign for less than 50 corporate attendees; MEET SMART
campaign suited for a minimum of 100 participants in five key industries, according to Thailand 4.0 policy; and MEET MEGA campaign for
over 3,000 corporate attendees.

Event Highlights in Fiscal 2017 (1 October 2016 - 30 September 2017)

Meetings and Incentives

1. Anran Nanometer Industry Development Co., Ltd 26 December 2016 — 5 January 2017 4,100 participants
2. Shenzhen Qi Li Enron Management Consulting Co., Ltd. 17 February — 7 March 2017 6,500 participants
3. Infinitus (China) Overseas Training 13 - 23 May 2017 8,000 participants
4. Herbalife Southeast Extravaganza 18 - 21 May 2017 10,000 participants
5. Jeunesse Expo 2017 14 — 17 September 2017 6,000 participants
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Convention Department

In Fiscal 2017, the Convention Department attracted 300,273 MICE travellers from around the world to attend international conventions in Thailand,
generating revenue of THB 26,145 million. The department also won 13 bids for new events to be hosted in Thailand.

Bidding and Support

1. Provided bidding support for organising 30 international conventions.

2. Implemented the Visitor Promotion scheme under the campaign “Convene in Paradise” to increase the number of international participants.

3. Assigned overseas agents for the North American market.

4. Organised a marketing promotion activity (Sales Missions) for target markets in Asia-Pacific countries such as Singapore.

5. Organised 9 familiarisation trips, such as the SITE Inspection and Education trip, to boost confidence in the country’s potential and
readiness to host events.

6. Promoted Thailand’s brand image and proactive marketing strategy by attending the 7" India Association Congress and ASAE Annual
Meeting and Exposition.

7. Expanded markets and stimulated demand for event organisation by participating in the 20" CPS organised by Thailand Incentive and
Convention Association (TICA). The department also invited internationally renowned lecturers and experts in the conventions industry to
speak in Thailand in order to provide an opportunity for clients and service providers to broaden their knowledge.

8. Developed 13 marketing promotional assets to publicise the international conventions industry in Thailand and overseas.

Development
1. The department applied for membership of international conventions organisations and collaborated with international partners to host
UIA Round Table Asia Pacific 2017 and UIA Round Table Europe 2017 events.

Winning Events in 2017
1. PCMA Global Professionals Conference - Asia Pacific 2017
12" Asia Pacific Conference on Tobacco or Health 2019 (APACT 2019)
International Conference for Tropical Medicine and Malaria 2020 (ICTMM2020)
The Third Asian Horticultural Congress 2020 (AHC 2020)
International IUPAC Conference on Green Chemistry 2018 (ICGC 2018)
Congress of the Asia Federation of Laboratory Animal Science (AFLAS 2020)
IEEE PES T&D (Transmission & Distribution) Conference and Exposition Asia 2019
65 Congress of the International Academy of Aviation and Space Medicine 2018 (ICASM 2018)
Asia Pacific Congress of Endoscopic and Laparoscopic Surgery 2019 (ELSA 2019)
. World Congress of the International College of Surgeons 2020 (ICS 2020)
. Non-European Congress of the International Society of Blood Transfusion (ISBT 2019)
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. International Council of Shopping Centers - ICSC Recon Asia 2017
. The 19" International Symposium of the World Association of Veterinary Laboratory Diagnosticians 2019 (19M ISWAVLD 2019)

—
W
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Exhibition and Event Department

In Fiscal 2017, the Exhibition and Event Department facilitated
215,992 MICE travellers who attended international exhibitions and
trade shows in Thailand, an increase of 19.68% over the previous year.
This generated revenue of THB 18,869 million, an increase of 20.29%
over 2016. In addition, festivals and mega events which were organised
in Thailand and supported by TCEB drew over 600,000 MICE travellers.
These increased number of travellers helped Thailand’s gross domestic
product to rise to THB 15,483,100,000 million.

Sponsorship of International Exhibitions
The Department supported many international trade shows and mega
events which can be classified into 9 categories as follows:

1. Site Inspection Package Programme supported international
organisers who have interest in organising their new events in Thailand
and provided them with greater information about the country.
Large-scale organisers have agreed to join this package programme,
for example Deutsche Messe plans to organise CeBIT, the world’s no.1
digital industry event from Germany’s Hannover, in Thailand in 2018.

2. Premier Exhibition Access Programme (PEA) gave support to
organisers who have confirmed organisation of new events in Thailand
and plan to host more related activities like press conferences, as well
as asking for in-depth information of Thailand’s MICE business. Several
organisers were interested to join this programme. For instance, DMG
Events Ltd. received assistance in organising a press conference in Tokyo,
Japan, to publicise the upcoming Future Energy Asia event; and UBM
Malaysia received support for successfully inviting representatives of
Thailand’s ministries to take part in its press conference. This helped
strengthen confidence in hosting the IFSEC event, a trade show for the
security and safety industry.

3. TCEB Partnership Programme assisted international festivals and
mega events organisers in bidding to host world-class events in Thailand,
coupled with hosting domestic mega events.
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4. International Recognition Programme supported international
mega events that have been organised for over 5 consecutive years
and also enabled Thailand’s mega events to be developed consistently

and earn recognition at the international level.

5. Examples of sponsorship of new international exhibition events 2017

8 - 20 November 2016

Events

Cosmex 2016

Thailand Yacht Show 2016 15 - 18 December 2016
Bangkok Design Festival 2017 9 - 19 February 2017
Bangkok Gourmet Festival 2017 3 -5 March 2017
Agritechnica Asia 2017 15 - 17 March 2017
Caliente 2017 15 - 19 March 2017
Intermat ASEAN 2017 8 - 10 June 2017
Mfair 2017 21 - 24 June 2017
Optimist World Championship 2017 11 - 21 July 2017
HoReCa Asia 2017 12 - 14 July 2017

ASEAN Retails 2017 13 - 16 July 2017
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Exhibition and Event Department

6. Examples of sponsorship of international trade shows and mega

1 - 5 February 2017

events in Fiscal 2017

Events

Bangkok International MotorBike
Festival 2017

Wonderfruit 2017 16 - 19 February 2017

Bangkok Entertainment Fest March - May 2017

VIV Asia 2017 15 - 17 March 2017

INTERMACH 2017 17 - 20 May 2017

ASEAN Sustainable Energy Week 2017 7 - 10 June 2017

ProPak Asia 2017 14 - 17 June 2017

Manufacturing Expo 2017 21 - 24 June 2017

Food and Hotel Thailand 2017 6 - 9 September 2017

7. International Marketing Activities for Supporting Organisers
« Roadshow in Tokyo, Japan held between 1 and 4 March
2017 to raise awareness of Thailand’s trade shows supported by
TCEB. The event attracted 80 participants.
 Roadshow in Seoul, South Korea, held on 17-19 April 2017 to
create awareness of Thailand’s trade shows promoted by TCEB.
The event attracted 82 participants.

8. Be My Guest campaign is a campaign that supports accommmodation
for potential buyers or visitors, selected by organisers, who attend
events or trade shows in Thailand. In Fiscal 2017, a total of 1,310 rooms
were booked and occupied.
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9. ASEAN Rising Trade Show (ART) campaign is a three-year
marketing promotion programme (2015-2017) with the aim of uplifting
the quality of Thailand’s international exhibition industry and acting
as a platform linking ASEAN trade. With three consecutive years of
organisation, the ART campaign has promoted 8 international
exhibitions and trade shows under 4 industries, which were:

« Food & Hotel Thailand 2017, Fi Asia 2017 and SIMA ASEAN
Thailand 2017 under the food and agriculture industry;,

« Thailand Lighting Fair 2017 and ASEAN Sustainable Energy Week
ART KPI 2017 under the energy industry;

« Beyond Beauty ASEAN Bangkok 2017 and Thailand Lab 2017
under the health and wellness industry;

» BMAM 2017 under the infrastructure industry.

The great success of the above mentioned exhibitions and trade
shows supported by the ART 2017 campaign attracted 11,797 foreign
visitors and exhibitors from ASEAN countries. This generated revenue of
THB 1,031.06 million for the industries.

Visitor Promotion - CONNECT Businesses Campaign

This campaign is aimed at penetrating target groups such as trade
associations, chambers of commerce, press and MICE business agents.
In Fiscal 2017, it successfully attracted 2,339 people and led to 7,391
business negotiations. This generated revenue of THB 204.43 million for
the country.

TCEB also hosted Thailand International Exhibitions and Events Forum
2017 (TIEEF) — a grand annual event for Thai entrepreneurs in the
exhibition and event industry — on 27 January 2017 at the Athenee
Hotel Bangkok. Attended by over 439 visitors from the public and private
sectors, the event enabled the department to announce the performance
of international exhibitions in Fiscal 2016, and outline the operational
direction and goals in Fiscal 2017.
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Domestic MICE Department

The Domestic MICE Department fulfilled its duties in promoting and driving the domestic MICE market in Fiscal 2017, as follows:

1. Thailand Domestic MICE Mart 2017 (TDMM 2017)

The first event was held on 31 May 2017 at Duangchanok Convention Hall, Duangjitt Resort & Spa in Phuket. There were 432 participants - 175
sellers and 257 buyers. The second event was held on 26 July 2017 at AVANI Khon Kaen Hotel & Convention Centre in Khon Kaen. There were 524
participants - 199 sellers, 215 buyers and 110 visitors.

2. Following in His Majesty the Late King’s Footsteps, Meeting in Thailand, Following Royal Initiatives campaign

TCEB, in collaboration with the Advertising Association of Thailand and the Association of Domestic Travel, organised the “Following in His Majesty the
Late King’s Footsteps, Meeting in Thailand, Following Royal Initiatives” campaign in accordance with its policy of organising meetings at the Royal Initiatives
Projects situated across the country under the concept of “Three Ps”: Phor Phiang (Sufficiency), Phoem Phum (Increase), and Pattana (Development). The
objective of this campaign is to encourage private agencies to host their meetings at the Royal Initiatives Projects in order to generate and distribute greater
income to local inhabitants. Additionally, TCEB offered a sales promotion package to private agencies nationwide for hosting meetings at 19 Royal Initiative
Projects across the nation with at least 30 participants.

3. Bolstering new trade shows, encouraging successful events to be hosted in other regional areas and improving the quality of trade shows

TCEB emphasised quality trade shows in line with the Thailand 4.0 policy. These included Intelligent Warehouse - a trade show of warehouse
management technology; Bangkok Hot Rod Custom — a show featuring innovations for retro car accessories and car styling parts; Engineering Expo - a trade
show showcasing engineering products and innovations invented by private organisations and nationwide academic institutes. The bureau also encouraged
the organisation of trade shows in other regional areas, such as One-Stop Shopping event in Khon Kaen, as well as bolstering new trade shows to be
organised both in Bangkok and other regions, such as Thailand Friendly Design Expo in Bangkok - a trade show featuring innovations and equipment for
elderly people and the disabled; Inter Lifestyle in Chiang Mai - an event presenting the handicrafts of northern Thailand.

4. Marketing activities in CLMV

TCEB organised a Thailand MICE Roadshow CLMV in Myanmar, Lao PDR, Socialist Republic of Vietnam and Kingdom of Cambodia to bolster
awareness of TCEB’s role in driving the MICE business. It also hosted activities for operators to experience Thailand’s MICE business, which helps
facilitate decision-making in choosing routes and MICE venues in Thailand, such as Hua Hin district in Prachuap Khiri Khan.

5. Seminar and meeting promotion activities to build awareness in Special Economic Zones (SEZ)

TCEB encourages the government and private sectors in the Special Economic Zones (SEZ) to recognise the importance of the MICE business as an efficient
tool in promoting the strong points of areas in the SEZ and the special economic zones of our neighbouring countries (CLMV). As a result, the bureau organised
meetings in 3 provinces - Trat, Nakhon Phanom and Chiang Rai. Topics covered trading, tourism, MICE business and mutual promotion of gsovernment policy.

6. Manual development project for Meet in Thailand...Prosperous Thailand or the Prachum Muangthai Pumjai Chuay Chart campaign

A manual introducing venues for seminars, hotels and accommodation, convention centres and venues for CSR or team-building activities in
12 Thai provinces across Thailand was published and distributed to related agencies to make use of the information in planning to host seminars.
The information is available both in print and digital formats, which can be accessed through the website www.dmiceplanner.com.

7. MICE network development in MICE Cities

TCEB encouraged MICE Cities, Khon Kaen and Phuket, to host the event “Thailand Domestic MICE Mart 2017”. In addition, the bureau promoted flagship
events to create a selling point for each city, which could serve as a platform for learning the standard of event organisation, such as Lanna Expo 2017 of the
upper north provinces organised by Chiang Mai province; GMS Fabric Expo hosted by Udon Thani province; Colour of Doi Tung Festival organised by Chiang Rai
province; and many more. TCEB also worked closely with Khon Kaen province to win the bid to host PATA Destination Marketing Forum in November 2018.

In further collaboration with Songkhla and Nakhon Ratchasima provinces, TCEB created a database for setting up strategies of a MICE City and other potential
cities by examining city profiles and searching for city DNA to systematically develop strategies and plan for promoting a MICE City to become an international
MICE destination.
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MICE Capability Department

The MICE Capability Department carried out 4 major schemes in Fiscal 2017 as part of its mission and strategy to develop and boost
capabilities of Thailand’s MICE business:

MICE Standard
Having implemented the Thailand MICE Venue Standard (TMVS)

project in Fiscal 2014, TCEB certified a further 215 meeting rooms from . . . .
101 MICE venues. In addition, the bureau played a major role in Currently’ Thailand is ranked as the country with the hlghESt

encouraging the Thailand MICE Venue Standard to be widely accepted |~ number of standardised meeting venues in Southeast Asia
The number of venues certified by Thailand MICE Venue

Standard in Fiscal 2017

among the ASEAN countries. As a result, this standard has been
designated as the template for developing the ASEAN MICE Venue

Standard (AMVS). TCEB also played an important part in organisin :
" Py P P saniins Regions Number of Venues
training programmes on the venue standard for ASEAN member
countries with more than 20 organisations taking part. This introduced North-East n
Thailand as a leader of MICE venue standards in the ASEAN region. North 9
South 16
MICE Sustainability East 19
TCEB organised the MICE Sustainability Forum with the aim of
distributing knowledge of sustainable event management for MICE West 10
operators and interested parties. It also published the Thailand Central 36
Sustainable Event Guide, a practical approach for entrepreneurs to Total 101

organise quality events. Additionally, TCEB encouraged MICE
entrepreneurs to reduce food waste and carbon at events they
organise through Food Waste Prevention and Carbon Neutral Event
campaign. TCEB, in collaboration with the Event Industry Council,
pioneered development of the Sustainable Events Professional Certificate
(SEPQC) course - an intensive course for sustainable event management.
The world’s first-ever event management course is planned for training
entrepreneurs in Thailand in 2018, the first country in Asia to offer this
course. More than 50 graduates are expected from this course.
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MICE Capability Department

MICE Academy

At present, TCEB forges alliances with 106 academic institutes nationwide, both higher education and vocational education, offering a MICE
study course. 15 academic institutes have recently offered this course such as Bangkok University, Khon Kaen University, Silpakorn University,
College of Innovation, Thammasat University, University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce, Phuket Rajabhat University, etc.

With the objective of enhancing MICE knowledge among universities forming alliances with the bureau, TCEB published a book and related
media for teaching and learning. “Event Management” is ASEAN’s first book on event management with in-depth and up-to-date content, and
will be used to teach over 5,000 undergraduate students. TCEB has extended its education network to universities in Australia and USA through
collaborative meetings on international education.

TCEB organised MICE Academy & Career Day to provide MICE knowledge for teachers, students and interested persons, as well as opportunities
for MICE operators to recruit staff from this event. To promote career opportunities for the young generation, the bureau also collaborated with
MICE entrepreneurs to provide a MICE study course in the Cooperative Education and the Dual Vocational Education systems. The bureau plans
to establish a MICE Academic Cluster, as well as a master plan on potential development of Thailand’s MICE business with research to sustainably
foster MICE study. At present, Thailand has the highest number of academic institutes that offer a MICE study course in the world and is the centre
for MICE study in Southeast Asia.

Trade Education

TCEB was granted the right to run the Certified in Exhibition Management (CEM) course in Southeast Asia by the International Association
of Exhibitions and Events (IAEE). In Fiscal 2017, this course created 54 CEM-certified professionals, bringing the total number of CEM-certified
professionals in Thailand to 111. Thailand is Southeast Asia’s leading country with the highest number of CEM certified professionals and the
third in Asia after China and Taiwan. In addition, TCEB joined hands with Meeting Professionals International (MPI) to organise the Certified
Meeting Professional (CMP) Boot Camp, creating 4 CMP-certified professionals in Fiscal 2017, making a total of 7 CMP-certified professionals in
Thailand. For further education, TCEB urged 634 MICE operators across the country to participate in international event management courses.
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Government and Corporate Affairs Department

The Government and Corporate Affairs Department has undertaken its tasks and promoted collaboration between TCEB and other related
public and private agencies in order to jointly support MICE events in Fiscal 2017, including:

Campaign for Integration of Public and Private Sectors to Strengthen Competitiveness of Thailand’s MICE Business
1) Activities for collaboration enhancement among government agencies for MICE business promotion were implemented twice:

« Organised from 25-27 January 2017 in Chumphon, the first activity was attended by 38 government agencies and private organisations,
including the Department of Consular Affairs, Ministry of Foreign Affairs; Customs Department; Immigration Bureau; Suvarnabhumi Airport; Don
Mueang International Airport; Thai Exhibition Association; and Thai Coffee Association. A seminar on “MICE and its role in driving Thai coffee business”
was also held with 68 participants from Chumphon Chamber of Commerce; Chumphon Provincial Agriculture and Cooperatives Office; Chumphon
Provincial Commercial Office; Chumphon Tourism and Sports Office; Chumphon Industrial Office; and Chumphon Coffee Entrepreneurs Group, etc.

» Organised from 2-4 August 2017 in Nakhon Ratchasima, the second activity was attended by 38 representatives of government
agencies and private organisations including the Immigration Bureau; Airports of Thailand Plc.; Department of Employment; Thai Food and
Drug Administration; Thai Exhibition Association; and Thailand Incentive and Convention Association. In accordance with the 20-year national
strategic framework, this event served as a platform for exchanging knowledge and understanding about the MICE business.

2) MICE Clinic activities were organised twice
* Meeting on operating procedures and approaches for customs formalities relating to conventions and international trade shows
on 13 January 2017 at InterContinental Hotel Bangkok. A representative from Suvarnabhumi Airport Cargo Clearance Bureau, Customs Department,
gave a presentation at the meeting, attended by 20 entrepreneurs from the private sector and TCEB.
» Meeting on visas for MICE travellers on 24 March 2017 at InterContinental Hotel Bangkok. The meeting was attended by 45
participants from the Department of Consular Affairs; Department of Employment; Immigration Bureau; Office of the National Economic and
Social Development Board; National Statistical Office; Bank of Thailand; and representatives from TCEB.

3) Implementation of the Sub-committee on Public-sector Coordination for facilitating trading and the MICE business. In Fiscal 2017, TCEB’s
Sub-committee on Public-sector Coordination undertook its duties to minimise difficulties and facilitate MICE organisation and MICE Logistics
in Thailand as follows:

- Arranging traffic systems and publicity posters for The Grand METALEX 2016.

« Arranging a green lane operated by the Customs Department for facilitating the organisers of ThaiFex 2017 to conveniently bring in equipment.

« Facilitating visa checking procedures and welcoming worldwide participants for the 29" sscT Congress 2016 at the airport.

« Publishing a manual on procedures for MICE organisation in relation to personnel and equipment for The Grand METALEX 2016, ThaiFex
2017, and the 29M 1sscT Congress 2016.
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Government and Corporate Affairs Department

Strategic Alliance between TCEB and Public & Private Sectors for MICE Business Promotion
1) Meetings between TCEB representatives of Thailand and alliances from public and private sectors in other countries. In Fiscal 2017,
meetings were held twice:
« Meeting between executives of public agencies and Thailand Team to promote Thailand’s MICE business from 9-13 April 2017 in
Tokyo, Japan.

« Leading TCEB alliances from public agencies to take part in marketing a promotion event from 16-21 July 2017 in Astana, Kazakhstan.

2) A Luncheon Talk 2017 on “Eastern Economic Corridor: Fast Track to Thailand 4.0?” was held on 10 October 2017 at Mandarin Oriental,
Bangkok. The event welcomed the president of Thailand Development Research Institute, who delivered a speech, together with the president
of Thailand Exhibition Association (TEA) and high-ranking executives from Amata Corporation Plc.
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Information Technology Department

To promote the MICE market in the digital age, the Information Technology Department focused on developing innovations in IT to best respond to
the target groups, including MICE organisers and travellers, by leveraging digital devices in conducting online marketing campaigns. An overview of online
marketing campaigns in Fiscal 2017 received a highly positive response from the target groups. The major activities implemented by the department
included:

1. TCEB’s Web Domain:

www.businesseventsthailand.com was developed in the form of content marketing. It can provide comprehensive information to meet the
needs and serve users in eight languages, attracting 2,701,958 pageviews, which can be divided into 1,000,449 international pageviews and 1,701,509
domestic pageviews.

Due largely to the higher use of smartphones than PC and tablets, the department further developed Biz Thailand, a bilingual application in
Thai and English for easy access to the latest news and MICE information provided by TCEB. This application gathers information of tourist attractions,
restaurants, hotels and accommodations, domestic and international flight information, MICE venues in Bangkok and major provinces in Thailand,
as well as updates on promotions and special events in real time based on the user’s current location (Location-Based Service). Biz Thailand
mobile application was also designed to link with TCEB’s social media platforms for ease of sharing information. With a total of 6,000 downloads,
it has proved that this application is suitable for TCEB’s target market and general public interested in meetings, conferences, exhibitions and events
held in Thailand.

2. Digital Media for Sales and Marketing Promotion:

The department leveraged 360 virtual reality technology in producing media and videos for promoting Thailand’s meeting and trade show
venues among MICE entrepreneurs who can visit TCEB’s website at www.businesseventsthailand.com/360virtualtour/. Such technology was also
used for producing sales media, which come together with 3D glasses. The innovative sales media received a positive response from the target
group and created visibility and views of 1.6 million within two months, August and September 2017.

3. Online Marketing and Publicity Promotion Campaigns:

+ International Online Marketing Campaign: TCEB, in collaboration with Visa International (Thailand) Ltd., Tourism Authority of Thailand,
Thai Airways International Plc., Thai Smile Airways Co., Ltd., and Department of International Trade Promotion, Ministry of Commerce, has run Spice
Up Thailand 2017, an online marketing campaign for 4 consecutive years. With the aim of stimulating greater spending and extending length of
stay in Thailand, this campaign offered exclusive privileges on products and services to MICE travellers, such as hotels and accommodations, airport
transfers and car rental services, airline tickets, spa and holistic healthcare packages, shopping, restaurants and many more. TCEB held a press
conference to launch Spice Up Thailand 2017 on 4 April 2017 with more than 150 participants.

» Domestic Online Marketing Campaign: TCEB conducted online publicity campaigns to encourage meetings or seminars held in the regional
areas. With the objective of persuading private organisations to organise seminars or meetings in regional areas or potential communities so as to
generate income to these communities and improve their economy in a sustainable manner, TCEB launched a new project called “Smart Village”
at the end of Fiscal 2017. In collaboration with its partners in the private sector, the bureau surveyed many potential communities, apart from MICE
Cities, that could accommodate MICE events. The project is to stimulate corporate groups to organise meetings or other events throughout the
country more frequently.
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Risk Management

The Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) or TCEB recognises the importance of effective risk management and
has therefore utilised an Enterprise Risk Management and Internal Control as a substantial tool of management for overall organisation. This
control mechanism offers assurance that organisational management extends to the performance regarding all levels, managing and making
executive decisions in correspondence to each other towards achievement of established missions in accordance to The Principles of Good
Governance by decree of “Protocol and Procedure of Good Governance” (2003). This decree requires state agencies to manage accomplishment
of intended missions while adhering to good principles of corporate governance and providing capable revision of control methods, assessment
of faults, and evaluation of performance measures effectively and efficiently considering factors of risk and the level of risks that may impact
operations. Appropriate selection of risk management and internal control measures will contribute to the operations of TCEB achieving its
goals and add value to the organisation.

The risk management and internal control framework for TCEB has been developed as a means of integration between Enterprise Risk
Management and Departmentalised Risk Management or Internal Control for the purpose of achieving operational results at all levels, in a
systematic way, and clearly allocating responsibilities for all levels of risk as well as efficient use of the bureau’s resources.

TCEB’s risk management policy puts a great emphasis on four main aspects, which are:
1) Maintain a balance between the risks and outcome of organisational operations in order to ensure achievement of each operation’s goals,
meet the expectations of stakeholders, and attain the highest benefits for the country under acceptable risk levels.
2) Determine appropriate operational strategies in correspondence to acceptable risk levels according to TCEB’s Board of Directors.
3) Encourage risk management to become a key component of TCEB to endorse efficient and effective performance by its executives and
employees.
4) Potential risks that may affect the achievement of TCEB’s objectives and strategies, which need immediate and ongoing attention,
are as follows:
« Comprehensive and timely identification of potential risks.
« Risks are typically assessed in terms of impact and likelihood.
« Effective management for an acceptable risk level with consideration regarding the appropriateness of both cause and effect of such action.
« Proper pursuit and regular reporting in order for TCEB to make appropriate and timely management of risk.

Risk Management Structure

With the aim of fulfilling its duties and missions as well as achieving its goals in promoting Thailand’s MICE business, TCEB has
assigned a working group of Risk Management and Internal Control to perform risk analysis and assessment based on the enterprise
risk management-integrated framework or COSO-ERM and set up TCEB’s risk management plan in relation to the current situation. The
working group of Risk Management and Internal Control is responsible for analysis of risk factors, development of a risk management
plan and preparation of risk management report to TCEB’s Subcommittee of Strategic Planning and Risk Management and the Board
of Directors for consideration.
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Risk Management

Risk Factors and Risk Management Strategies

In recognition of significant impacts arising from corporate-level risk factors that are needed to be managed and controlled, particularly risks
that may affect goals, TCEB has drawn up a control or management plan to follow up and monitor the risk management results continuously. TCEB
also aims for risk management to be a tool for evaluating the effectiveness of its operations. In Fiscal 2017, TCEB carefully considered both
internal and external risk factors, business environment, significant change, as well as process, regulations and practices of the bureau to identify
the risks. It also analysed and categorised risk factors, main risks and risk management strategies into 4 types as follows:

Management Approaches

Types of Risk

62

Strategic Risk

As a major agency with its main mission to develop
Thailand’s MICE business, TCEB places an emphasis
on the factors that are likely to affect formulation
of strategic policies for promoting MICE business
and activities. TCEB takes the following factors into
consideration:

* Policies and regulations on MICE business operations
issued by government agencies

* Policies on stimulating the economic sector made
by the government

* Thailand’s and the world’s socio-economic
environment

+ Competition arising from the international MICE
business, marketing campaigns and marketing
promotion policy, especially with major competing
countries within the MICE business

» Thailand’s infrastructure supporting the development
of the regional MICE business

* Expertise of personnel and skilled labour to
accommodate the growth and expansion of the
MICE business

* Plan for business development and standard setting
for sustainability in the industrial sector

TCEB recognises many possible factors that have effects on its operational goals and may prevent

it from achieving successful implementation. In accordance with the strategic plan and the MICE
Industry’s Master Plan (2017 - 2021), TCEB is required to carry out its missions in response to the
demands of all stakeholders and pursue the government’s policy on promoting the MICE business,
which is regarded as an efficient tool to support the development of Thailand’s economy.
Therefore, TCEB has developed various management approaches as follows:

« Study and develop a plan called “Smart MICE” for driving the country’s economy using the
MICE business. In response to the government’s Thailand 4.0 policy, the plan aims to
encourage MICE entrepreneurs in the private sector to join hands with other industries in
organising MICE events. This will lead to an integrated collaboration.

» Adopt and develop a model of an innovation-driven economy under the Thailand 4.0 policy
by organising a SMART MICE Thailand 2017 event. This aims to encourage MICE organisers to
leverage innovations and technologies in organising MICE events and enhance the standards

of organisation so as to attract many MICE participants from various countries.

« Set up a working group to offer collaboration and coordination between TCEB and other related
agencies of the government and private sectors. The collaboration includes determining strategic
policies, facilitating MICE organisation, as well as mutually developing an academic course on the
MICE business for MICE professionals, leading to collaboration in developing the MICE business.

« Publicise Thailand’s MICE business to enhance its image, together with TCEB’s major role
in developing the MICE business through the organisation of the Thailand MICE Forum 2017
event. This was regarded as an important forum for demonstrating the potential of Thailand’s
MICE business to international participants.

« Support Thai MICE entrepreneurs to receive international standard certification in order to raise
Thailand’s MICE event organisational capability to international level. In addition, promote the
standard of MICE venues run by Thai entrepreneurs to meet Thailand MICE Venue Standard (TMVS),
which reflects the high quality and professional services equivalent to international standards.

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
(PUBLIC ORGANIZATION) ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NISUSHISADUIAE]

U3igAIuIFaI0IANSUAzNAENSNISUSHISADIWIFE]
daUu. duiuiwanssnuvesdadurnuideduszivasdnsiidesdiniuimsdanis lesemzarudesdlasunisssyindutladeiiiuunlbudmanszny
son1sussamuneves aavu. egdidudidny waziiludmuawnunisaIvanriedansTivinzan naenauiiliinisinmuwasUsediunan1susnsIanig
a ' o & & P~ O v a a < o A A Y] a a a wa v & - =
ANudstedeaiiios Vil aauu. danuaiulinsuimsanudsaduniosenivie Tausyansnaveansujunu daiu Tulaudssann 2560 aavu. 39
Ansaustaduanudewmiainneueniaznelusiing anmwIndeuitieatemagsna nswdsuiuaindfnysieg naenaussuy sedeu wagdsnis
UfjUAnesdnsaniiued iefiganusainludnisseysenisninudedssdns (TCEB Risk) lnevihnsinsgiimuadaduanuidssnnudsmanuaznagns
Fansanuasanuseandu 4 a1y fail

dszinnaduasad

AUIFaIAUNagNsuazulaug

= | v da v a o o
Wesan aavu. Wumitenundnifidusiadidglu
nsiaugsnaluduesUszwmealve Jadeiiawnsodma
nIgNuAanNIsMuAnagns uleueieativayunis

o a a a e @ & a a
mLuu@iﬂf\]LLa%ﬂ‘ﬂﬂiiiﬂlﬂJ‘dﬂﬂL‘lJuL‘lJuﬂ’ﬂ&JLﬁENVI aavu.

Tianuddny Inefinnsanainmstadevislusiiu

- ulsveannipsguasngssilouinestosiunisaiiy
gsfalud

- WlBUIENINTEAUNIAATYENIVEITTUIA

- AnnIndeNmaATegikardinvesUsemalvauas
ilan

- anmrmswsiiungugsialudseiiuununyd Aanssunis
aaauazuleuteduasunisnain asanizlungy
Uszinaniluguasddy

« lassadaiugIueUsewmeal 1Be1uigan TR
ganaludludeium

+ fiNwEANTINYNITVBIYAIINTUALUTIURETBLND
sesfunsiulauagveneiivesgsialudluewan

- LnAaMIRLgSRakaEN1saswInTgIl ieass
ANUSIEUDNIAGAAINTTY

NISUSHISAANS

mewndadesneianunsadsmansenudedmunensaniivnuves gavu. imueld aadu. 39
aszminfernuddguesadedowine famnsodmansenuli aavu. livssqithmunenuunn
% 3 ' < = ' @
NuiunagnsuazulutenuLEuwtiungnamnssulud we. 2560 - 2564 Fuluuwnuutiunndnly
mIRliuiusiaveasng muamsalunsneUauasanNRBINTYesilddY Iunmeu
auawiauleuneresigunaiidesnisiigsnaludidunilsluedesdienduasunazimunnimasugia

voeUseme Falainsusmsdanislunatednu e1fiiu

= @ a 1Y :4' a v a '3 = v w9y a
« AnwuasimuuaAan1sturieouniamsygRamiegsialudg (Smart MICE) tendnaulyingugsia
fusgneunisludaaenvuiiununisianuludlunguanamnssuiidunisysannsanusiuiioly
VN9 fu pevausrenIsimuauleueUszndlne 4.0 (Thailand 4.0) ve3s§ua

- ilaan1stuindouasegianiswinnssuneliuwiAn Thailand 4.0 uimwsosoalnenIs

JA91U SMART MICE Thailand 2017 iieatiuayulvinguidnnuldldinaluladuazuinnssuiivain
veneslilunsdnauludlviiusednsam fagagidrsimnuludanuiuiuseme

- folvifinquanizyinnumsiuiossning aauu. fumbeanuniaiguasniaenyy M Afeades
wsluduszaumiusmiletmundnagniuarulovismssiwsarmazninsomsinaulud
nsWmueevingns mansAnwiuazyaansaeeriwnulud WerslsiAansdndumsuile
snae Tumsianngsialud

 Aomsussrdiiusiftoduaiunmdnuaigsialutuesuszmalne safeunumues aavu, fifive
nsWangsAvludHun1sdasy Thailand MICE Forum 2017 fidelsinduniiuansdneniw
ssfaludvesuszmalngluasniuiuneid

- duedulvinguifuszneugsialudlulneldumssusesnmsglussivaina tieonsefudnonm
vosmsinnuludvadneiugnilan mutaduapliissnovgsisamuiidnauiinasgudmsy
n3naulad (TMVS: Thailand MICE Venue Standard) fifiunnsuanafisgauninuagudnsitiiana
uileodmifisuninluszdvaina

sraguds=daudszutu w.A. 2560
dunaudiasumsinus=guuazinssAMs (9IANISUKIBU) 63




64

Risk Management

Types of Risk

Operational Risk

This kind of risk might affect the performance of
TCEB’s executives and staff, as well as overall
TCEB operations. The following risks may mean
TCEB’s implementation is unable to achieve the
set goals.

* Policy on the change of management process
and system supervised by authorised government
agencies

» Administrative structure and system, human
resources, corporate culture and existing

organisational processes and practices

* Use of IT technology and innovations for internal
and external communication

Financial Risk

TCEB considers such risk from the following factors:

» The government’s financial and budget support

policy relating to the MICE business

Management Approaches

TCEB places emphasis on internal and external factors that are likely to influence its
operational process and duties as it is responsible for promoting MICE marketing campaigns
and activities to achieve the strategic goals that have been already set. As a result, TCEB
has analysed the existing operational process to verify its effectiveness, accuracy and quickness
in order to best respond to the demands of service recipients and stakeholders. Moreover,
TCEB has improved its work procedure to be consistent with external factors and developed
the following approaches to enhance the efficiency of its operations:

* Develop a plan for improving the organisation’s procurement process to be in accordance
with the government’s procurement regulations that were redetermined. TCEB has carried
out a pilot project of the procurement process since the end of 2016 in order to prepare
itself for the adjusted procurement process officially announced in August 2017.

* Develop an integration plan for supporting MICE event organisation and embrace the

digital technology and online service system to facilitate service recipients in checking
the news and information about the MICE business while providing support through online
channels. After the online service system is completely set, TCEB will publicise the
support channels among its targeted group.

« Develop TCEB’s main website: www.businesseventsthailand.com to be the centre of
comprehensive information on MICE event organisation. Under the concept of “Content
Marketing”, the website is designed to gather the latest news and information. Its standard
and efficiency are equivalent to other websites of world-class MICE agencies. Moreover, its
content must become sufficiently comprehensive to best respond to the users’ demands.

TCEB has placed importance on the efficiency of budget management, which must be in
line with the strategies and plans that have already been set in order to consistently support
annual MICE activities and add value to business groups and entrepreneurs involved in the

MICE business. Therefore, TCEB’s budget management approaches are as follows:

* Respond to the government’s policy in managing the budget and budget spending plan
drawn up by TCEB in order to encourage the MICE business to serve as a major driving
force in developing Thailand’s economy as a part of the country’s strategic agenda under

the integrated programme on generation of revenue from tourism and services.
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Risk Management

Types of Risk

Financial Risk

* Rules and regulations on annual budget approval,
as well as the roles of government agencies that
issue the regulations on budget spending

Compliance Risk

As a government agency operating under regulations,
TCEB’s image and performance could be adversely
affected by this kind of risk if the operations are not
in compliance with the regulations. TCEB considers
such risk from the following factors:

» Law enforcement and the cabinet’s resolution on
public organisation

» New laws and regulations on procurement by gov-

emment agencies
» Strict investigation of the execution by government
agencies

Management Approaches

» Boost confidence in efficiency and return on budget spending among MICE business
stakeholders. TCEB has also focused on managing its budget to be in accordance with an
annual operation plan and activities that extends its continued support for organising both

national and international MICE events in Thailand.

As a government agency that has been established and carries out its duties under the
regulations and missions assigned by the cabinet, TCEB is responsible for promoting
Thailand’s MICE business and enhancing its image in compliance with all laws, rules
and regulations. Its execution must be transparent and subject to examination. In addition,
TCEB is required to achieve effective time management and work with agility as a public
organisation. Therefore, TCEB has set up and taken the following management approaches:
« Set up practices and procedures for TCEB’s executives and staff to conform to regulations
determined by related sovernment agencies. Such practices and procedures include a plan
for adjustment of procurement procedure in compliance with the new government
procurement and supplies management law regulated by the Comptroller General’s Department,
Ministry of Finance, as well as a plan for improvement of contract management, which needs
to be more accurate in compliance with the new law.

* Promote the corporate culture in management to be in compliance with good corporate
governance practices among TCEB executives and staff by organising activities focusing on
distributing knowledsge of rules and regulations on operation, code of ethics and transparency.
Such action enables TCEB’s overall operational results to be highly appropriate.

In summary, under the guidance of the Board of Directors and the working group of Risk Management and Internal Control, TCEB has promoted
risk management to be an efficient tool in managing the organisation in compliance with good corporate governance practices, a significant
mechanism supporting and enhancing TCEB’s operations. As the major government agency responsible for driving Thailand’s MICE business,
TCEB has aspired to achieve its missions while boosting great confidence in its overall management for the benefit of service recipients and
all stakeholders in various sectors.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

My opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) (“TCEB”) present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of TCEB as at 30 September 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting standards and policies for Government Units issued by the Ministry of Finance.

What I have audited

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of TCEB, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2017,
and the statement of income, the statement of changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. | am independent of TCEB in accordance with the
Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting standards and
policies for Government Units issued by the Ministry of Finance, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing TCEB’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as ap-
plicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate TCEB or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. I also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TCEB’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on TCEB’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause TCEB to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control if | identify during my audit.

S . Uog-camprl

Sukhumaporn Wong-ariyaporn

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4843
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Bangkok

26 March 2018
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Statement of Financial Position

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

As at 30 September 2017

72

2017 2016

Notes Baht Baht
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 544,264,509 606,865,311
Short-term investments 4 128,056,694 121,097,787
Account receivables 5 927,613 1,262,716
Other current assets 6 13,229,670 14,243,957
Total current assets 686,478,486 743,469,771
Non-current assets
Equipment 28,257,432 30,660,173
Intangible assets 30,420,002 33,445,618
Deposit 5,406,740 5,406,740
Total non-current assets 64,084,174 69,512,531
Total assets 750,562,660 812,982,302

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.

s — A=

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
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Statement of Financial Position (Cont’d)

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
As at 30 September 2017

2017 2016

Notes Baht Baht
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Account payables 10 95,661,227 69,500,272
Retentions 11 11,302,993 13,775,504
Other current liabilities 12 3,721,272 4,449,194
Total current liabilities 110,685,492 87,724,970
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefit obligations 13 20,086,958 13,440,016
Provisions for legal claims 22 28,273,192 54,048,772
Other non-current liabilities 14 5,584,748 7,671,248
Total non-current liabilities 53,944,898 75,160,036
Total liabilities 164,630,390 162,885,006
Net assets 585,932,270 650,097,296
Net assets
Accumulated surpluses 585,932,270 650,097,296
Total net assets 585,932,270 650,097,296

RhireeF— P E=""
Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya
President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Performance

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2017 2016

Notes Baht Baht
Revenues from operations
Revenues from government
Government budget appropriations 992,332,700 1,029,536,600
Total revenues from government 992,332,700 1,029,536,600
Revenues from other sources
Income from organizing training and seminars 1,645,795 1,712,150
Income from registration fees for exhibition participation 15 8,619,370 10,071,076
Interest income from deposits at financial institutions 6,525,924 7,306,514
Other income 217,871 186,916
Total revenues from other sources 17,008,960 19,276,656
Total revenues from operations 1,009,341,660 1,048,813,256
Operating EXPENSES
Personnel expenses 16 163,470,720 144,905,313
Administrative expenses 17 170,892,250 170,304,291
Marketing and promotion expenses 18 481,231,704 475,838,575
Grants 19 235,870,172 232,217,718
Depreciation and amortisation 7,8 22,292,303 25,589,029
Total operating expenses 1,073,757,149  1,048,854,926
Revenues over (under) operating expenses (64,415,489) (41,670)
Non-operating income (expense) 20 250,463 110,378

Revenues over (under) expenses for the year (64,165,026)

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya
President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

Accumulated

surpluses

Baht

Opening balance as at 1 October 2015 650,028,588
Revenues over expenses for the year 68,708
Closing balance as at 30 September 2016 650,097,296
Opening balance as at 1 October 2016 650,097,296
Revenues under expenses for the year (64,165,026)

Closing balance as at 30 September 2017 585,932,270

Rhren P — ="
Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya
President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2017 2016

Notes Baht Baht
Cash flows from operating activities:
Revenues over (under) expenses for the year (64,165,026) 68,708
Adjustments to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation 7,8 22,292,303 25,589,029
Write off equipment and intangible assets 7,8 - 135,809
Gain on foreign exchange translation (11,577) (11,623)
Reversal of provisions for legal claims 22.2 (27,467,123) -
Interest income (6,525,924) (7,306,514)
Revenues over (under) expenses before changes in
operating assets and liabilities: (75,877,347) 18,475,409
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Account receivables 334,672 1,419,297
Deposits - (1,430,082)
Other current assets 1,014,288 331,419
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Account payables 25,639,022 (6,417,146)
Retentions (2,472,511) 3,671,352
Other current liabilities (727,923) (203,408)
Employee benefit obligations 6,646,942 2,397,532
Provisions for legal claims 1,691,543 3,200,287
Other non-current liabilities (2,086,500) =
Cash generated from (used in) operations (45,837,814) 21,444,660
Interest received 6,526,355 7,467,389

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities (39,311,459) 28,912,049

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya
President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows (Cont’d)
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2017 2016
Notes Baht Baht

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of short-term investments (98,184,284) (121,097,808)
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments 91,225,378 97,937,042
Purchase of equipment (5,641,187) (8,200,008)
Purchase of intangible assets (10,693,002) (10,857,094)
Net cash used in investing activities (23,293,095) (42,217,868)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (62,604,554) (13,305,819)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 606,865,311 620,147,394
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents 3,752 23,736

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 544,264,509

606,865,311

82

Supplemental cash flow information
Non-cash transactions:
Payable for purchases of equipment and intangible assets 529,757

Rhren P — ="
Mr. Chiruit Isarangkul Na Ayuthaya
President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 84 to 113 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

1. General information

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) (“TCEB”) was established according to the Royal Decree for the
Establishment of Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) B.E. 2545, which was announced in the Government
Gazette on 27 September 2002. TCEB’s objectives are:

a. To promote the organizing of meetings, incentive travel and exhibitions in Thailand.

b. To support and organize the presentation of Thai art and culture for the purpose of preservation.

c. To provide technical know-how and training to government officials and the public in order to gain skills that are equivalent to
international standards of the tourism industry.

d. To be an information centre for international meetings, conventions and exhibitions.

e.To provide knowledge for the operators of tourism business to understand the need for preservation of environments and natural
resources.

The operations to achieve the above-mentioned objectives are carried out with targets to enhance the further development and expansion
of Thailand as a centre for international meetings, incentive travel and international exhibitions.

TCEB is located at Siam Piwat Tower Building, 25th and 26th Floors, Unit A2, B1, B2, 989 Rama 1 Road, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330.

The financial statements have been approved by TCEB’s Board of Directors on 26 March 2018.

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:

2.1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards and policies for Government Units issued
by the Ministry of Finance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The actual results may differ from those estimates.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that are in the Thai
language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language statutory financial
statements shall prevalil

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
(PUBLIC ORGANIZATION) ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2. New accounting standards for Government Units
1) Accounting standards for Government Units which are effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 October 2016.

Accounting standard for Government Units no. 5 Borrowing costs
Accounting standard for Government Units no. 16 Investment Property

2) Accounting standard for Government Units which is effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 October 2017. TCEB has not early
adopted this standard.

Accounting standard for Government Units no. 17 Property, Plant and Equipment

TCEB’s management has determined and concluded that these new accounting standards for Government Units have no significant impact to
the financial statements being presented

2.3. Foreign currency translation
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using Thai Baht. The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary balances are translated by using the exchange rate at the closing rate.
Monetary assets denominated in foreign currency are translated to Thai Baht by using an average bank’s buying rate calculated by Bank
of Thailand and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated to Thai Baht by using an average bank’s selling rate
calculated by Bank of Thailand. Non-monetary balances denominated in a foreign currency are carried at cost using the exchange rate
at the date of transaction.

Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised as non-operating income or expenses in the statement of financial

performance.

2.4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, and deposits held at call with banks but exclude deposits with banks which are restricted deposits. Cash
equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2. Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.5. Short-term investment
Short-term investment is investment intended to be held for less than one year. It includes fixed deposits with maturities more than three
months to one year, trading securities, available-for-sale securities, general investments and debt securities with maturities within one year.

2.6. Account receivables
Account receivables are accrued income and advance receivables to staff for operating purposes. The advance receivables are carried at
the original payment amount and subsequently measured at the remaining amount after deducting any expenditures incurred in the period.

2.7. Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and allowance for a decrease in value (if any). Assets are
recognised for any item of Baht 5,000 or more.

Cost of equipment comprises purchase price, import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and
rebates) and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. These include the estimate of dismantling and removing costs, and restoring the site in which
the asset is located. An entity incurs such obligation either when the asset is acquired or as a consequence of having used such asset
during a period.

Equipment is depreciated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold improvement 8 - 10 years
Office equipment 10 years
Electronic and radiogram equipment 10 years
Advertising equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Household equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Whenever there is an indication showing a permanent decrease in the value of a fixed asset; such as evidence of obsolescence or physical
damage of an asset, significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used or is expected to be used, loss on a decrease in value is
recognised in the statement of financial performance where the carrying amount of the asset is higher than the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2. Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.8. Intangible assets

Computer software is valued at cost less accumulated amortisation. Costs of computer software comprise costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition and development of computer software, or acquisition costs of right to use computer software. These costs
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives 5 years.

2.9. Leases - where the entity is the lessee

Leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
financial performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease agreement.

2.10. Employee benefits

Provident fund

TCEB provides a provident fund, a defined contribution plan, which was held separately from TCEB’s assets and managed by the external fund
manager. Such provident fund is contributed by the employees and TCEB. Contributions to the provident fund are
recognised as expenses in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they are incurred.

Post-employment benefits
Provision for employee benefit is estimated following TCEB’s rule and regulation relating to staff welfare and benefit B.E. 2558. It is calculated
based on the actuarial technique by using a projected unit credit method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to the statement of financial performance in the period in which they arise.

2.11. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when an entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events. It is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are
recognised based on best estimation of amounts to be settled.

Where it is expected that a provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The amount recognised for reimbursement should not exceed the amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

2. Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.12. Revenue recognition
Budget from the government is unconditional budget. It is recognised as income when received.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.13. Expenses

Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis when incurred. Grants are recognised as expenses when they are approved to pay to eligible

receivers and the conditions are complied.

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Notes Baht Baht

Cash 100,000 100,000
Current accounts 2,000 2,000
Savings accounts 344,583,671 407,011,661
Fixed deposit - 3 months 199,578,838 199,751,650

Total cash and cash equivalents 544,264,509 606,865,311
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

4. Short-term investments
Short-term investments as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017
Baht

Fixed deposit - 6 months to 1 year 128,056,694

Total short-term investments 128,056,694

2016
Baht

121,097,787

121,097,787

5. Account receivables
Account receivables as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017

Baht
Advance receivables 575,039
Advance receivables for organizing exhibitions 33,398
Interest receivable 319,176
Total account receivables 927,613
6. Other current assets
Other current assets as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017

Baht
Prepaid expenses for organizing exhibitions 7,811,095
Other prepaid expenses 4,460,360
Deposit for office decoration 500,000
Refundable air tickets 458,215
Total other current assets 13,229,670
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2016
Baht

795,213
147,897
319,606

1,262,716

2016
Baht

7,941,749
3,035,492
3,127,546

139,170

14,243,957
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

For the year ended 30 September 2017

7. Equipment

Equipment as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Leasehold
improvement
Baht

As at 1 October 2016
Cost 43,947,120
Less Accumulated depreciation  (26,555,540)

Net book amount 17,391,580

Office
equipment

Baht

7,126,731
(4,628,380)

2,498,351

Electronic and
radiogram
equipment

Baht

10,257,383
(3,420,268)

6,837,115

Advertising
equipment Computers
Baht Baht

778,338 18,996,469
(571,967) (15,378,360)

206,371 3,618,109

Household
equipment

Baht

303,367
(194,721)

108,646

Vehicles
Baht

290,000
(289,999)

Total
Baht

81,699,408
(51,039,235)

30,660,173

For the year ended
30 September 2017

Opening net book amount 17,391,580
Addition 807,811
Write off - Cost (8,697,094)
- Accumulated depreciation 8,697,094
Depreciation charged (4,650,259)

Closing net book amount 13,549,132

2,498,351
1,020,291

(494,044)

3,024,598

6,837,115
1,111,563

(951,430)

6,997,248

206,371 3,618,109
2,934,677

(95,211) (2,345,829)

111,160 4,206,957

108,646
296,602

(36,912)

368,336

30,660,173
6,170,944
(8,697,09 4)
8,697,094
(8,573,685)

28,257,432

As at 30 September 2017
Cost 36,057,838
Less Accumulated depreciation  (22,508,706)

Net book amount 13,549,132

8,147,022
(5,122,424)

3,024,598

11,368,946
(4,371,698)

6,997,248

778,338 21,931,146
(667,178) (17,724,189)

111,160 4,206,957

599,969
(231,633)

368,336

290,000
(289,999)

79,173,259
(50,915,825)

28,257,432
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

8. Intangible assets
Intangible assets as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Computer
Computer software
software in progress
Baht Baht
As at 1 October 2016
Cost 81,260,715 4,590,000
Less Accumulated amortisation (52,405,097)

Net book amount 28,855,618

Total
Baht

85,850,715
(52,405,097)

33,445,618

For the year ended 30 September 2017

33,445,618
10,693,002

(13,718,618)

Opening net book amount 28,855,618 4,590,000
Addition - 10,693,002
Transfer in / (out) 9,620,927 (9,620,927)
Amortisation charged (13,718,618)

Closing net book amount 24,757,927 5,662,075
As at 30 September 2017

Cost 90,881,642 5,662,075
Less Accumulated amortisation (66,123,715)

30,420,002

96,543,717
(66,123,715)

Net book amount 24,757,927 5,662,075
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

9. Deposits
Deposits as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Baht Baht
Office rental deposits 5,335,160 5,335,160
Other deposits 71,580 71,580
Total deposits 5,406,740 5,406,740
10. Account payables
Account payables as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
2017 2016
Baht Baht
Local payables 88,223,703 58,543,846
Overseas payables 4,114,798 9,162,382
Accrued expenses 3,322,126 1,794,044
Total account payables 95,661,227 69,500,272
Local payables include liabilities of Baht 8.52 million which are under the lawsuit process (Note 22).
11. Retentions
Retentions as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
2017 2016
Baht Baht
Retentions for contracts 11,302,993 11,720,504
Retentions for bidding - 2,055,000

Total retentions 11,302,993 13,775,504
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

12. Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017

Baht
Unearned income - registration fee 1,607,325
Withholding tax payable 1,657,606
VAT payable 456,341
Total other current liabilities 3,721,272
13. Employee benefit obligations
Movement of employee benefit obligations during the year is as follows:

2017

Baht
Opening balance 13,440,016
Increase during the year 6,646,942
Closing balance 20,086,958
14. Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017

Baht
Provisions for decommissioning cost 4,494,000
Retentions for contracts 1,090,748

Total other non-current liabilities 5,584,748

2016
Baht

1,903,257
1,962,575

583,362

4,449,194

2016
Baht

11,042,484
2,397,532

13,440,016

2016
Baht

6,580,500
1,090,748

7,671,248
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

15. Income from registration fees for exhibition participation

Income from registration fees for exhibition participation represents registration fees collected from private Thai entrepreneurs operating in the
MICE industry for the participation in Trade and Road Shows activities with TCEB relating to sales promotions and business negotiations
between entrepreneurs and visitors. Income from registration fees for exhibition participation is as follows:

2017 2016
Baht Baht
Income from registration fees for exhibition participation 8,619,370 10,071,076

8,619,370 10,071,076

16. Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Baht Baht
Salaries 115,042,267 107,642,013
Bonus 11,711,114 8,708,240
Provident fund contribution expenses 7,469,016 6,861,566
Staff welfare 22,601,381 19,295,962
Post-employment benefits 6,646,942 2,397,532
Total personnel expenses 163,470,720 144,905,313
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

17. Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Baht Baht
Training expenses 26,899,911 26,235,214
Travelling expenses 43,132,937 45,812,979
Rental expenses 28,867,033 23,676,292
Utility expenses 5,427,572 5,302,833
Meeting expenses 3,255,000 2,574,250
Remuneration to external parties 38,802,803 29,044,305
Other service fees 32,762,266 24,514,834
Reserve for loss from legal claims 1,691,543 3,200,287
Reversal of provisions for legal claims (27,467,123) -
Organizing exhibition expenses 6,907,579 2,327,123
Other expenses 10,612,729 7,616,174

Total administrative expenses 170,892,250 170,304,291

18. Marketing and promotion expenses
Marketing and promotion expenses for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Baht Baht
Marketing supplies 12,017,472 10,923,322
Public relation expenses 148,795,160 166,086,948
Booth expenses 20,021,617 22,846,287
Area and equipment rental 47,620,042 54,499,862
Marketing and research expenses 49,911,815 45,492,103
Promotion expenses 202,865,598 175,990,053

Total marketing and promotion expenses 481,231,704 475,838,575
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

19. Grants
Grants for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Baht Banht
Grants - Non-profit private organization 61,875,388 69,232,897
Grants - Overseas private organization 37,703,403 38,302,144
Grants - Thai private organization 122,553,621 110,277,453
Grants - Government bureau 13,737,760 14,405,224
Total grants 235,870,172 YEYVAVAL]
20. Non-operating income (expense)
Non-operating income (expense) for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016

Baht Baht
Gain on foreign exchange translation 250,463 246,187
Write off equipment and intangible assets = (135,809)

Total non-operating income (expense) 250,463 110,378

21. Commitments
TCEB entered into lease and service agreements for office space at Siam Piwat Tower and entered into operating service
agreements. The future aggregate minimum payments are as follows:

2017 2016
Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 108,784,646 112,776,533
Over 1 year but less than 5 years 10,670,320 32,010,959

119,454,966 144,787,492
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

22. Lawsuits
As at 30 September 2017 and 2016, TCEB was sued as defendant in significant lawsuits as follows:

22.1 The lawsuits filed against TCEB for compensation of contractual damages relate to suspensions of payment by TCEB to counterparties
in the fiscal year 2007 due to unusual transactions. TCEB submitted related supporting documents to the Office of the National Anti-Corruption
Commission since 4 December 2007. There were 3 lawsuits totalling Baht 50.75 million. The details of lawsuits are as follows:

1) On 30 April 2008, a private company sued TCEB at the Central Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 1524/2551,
for damages amounting to Baht 22.27 million. On 10 April 2014, the Central Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht 3.13
million with interest 7.5% per annum within 60 days from final judgement date. However, TCEB appealed the judgement on 8 May 2014.
The lawsuit is currently under the consideration of the Supreme Administrative Court.

2) On 23 February 2010, a private company sued TCEB at the Central Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 318/2553,
for damages amounting to Baht 23.32 million. On 30 August 2013, the Central Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht
15.16 million with interest 7.5% per annum of principal of Baht 14.26 million from filing date to payment date. TCEB appealed the judgement
on 27 September 2013. The lawsuit is currently under the consideration of the Supreme Administrative Court.

3) On 30 November 2011, a private company sued TCEB at the Central Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 2014/2554,
for damages amounting to Baht 5.16 million. On 11 December 2014, the Central Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht
6.75 million with interest 7.5% per annum within 60 days from final judgement date. However, TCEB appealed the judgement on 9 January
2015. The lawsuit is currently under the consideration of the Supreme Administrative Court.

The outcome has been considered and reviewed by the management. It is probable that TCEB may lose these cases. Therefore, TCEB
recorded provisions for legal claims on principal and interest totalling Baht 28.27 million based on the judgment of the Central Administrative
Court.

22.2 Other lawsuits

On 28 October 2011, a private company sued TCEB and the Customs Department at the Central Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case
number 2134/2554, for damages related to the negligence amounting to Baht 20.00 million. On 10 February 2015, the Central Administrative
Court dismissed the case and the plaintiff subsequently appealed the judgment. On 21 June 2017, the Supreme Administrative Court affirmed
the decision of the Central Administrative Court. The case was finalised. TCEB, therefore, reversed the provision for legal claims of Baht 27.47
million in 2017 by presenting it in operating expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

23. Budgeting report
Budgeting report for the year ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017

Total Reserve PO/Contract Payment Ending
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Budget plan
Government grant budget 992,332,700 - - 992,332,700 -
992,332,700 992,332,700
Total Reserve PO/Contract Payment Ending
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Budget plan
Government grant budget 1,029,536,600 - - 1,029,536,600 -

1,029,536,600 1,029,536,600

The amount of payment is budget from the government that TCEB received and recorded as gsovernment budget appropriations in the statement of financial performance.
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Financial Statement Analysis

The analysis of the strengths of the Statement of Financial Position shows that total assets of TCEB in 2017 were 585.93 million baht, a
decrease of 64.17 million baht or a 10% reduced on 2016, because of the reduction of total assets by 62.42 million baht and the rise in total
liabilities by 1.74 million baht.

* Total assets in 2017 were 750.56 million baht, a decrease on 812.98 million baht in 2016. Current assets decreased by 8% when
compared to the previous year due to the reduction of cash, cash equivalents, from 606.87 million baht in 2016 to 544.26 million baht
in 2017. Other current assets decreased from 14.24 million baht in 2016 to 13.23 million baht in 2017. Non-current assets decreased
by 8% per the reduction of intangible assets by 9% when compared to the previous year, or a decrease of 3.03 million baht, the
reduction of equipment by 8% when compared to the previous year, or a decrease of 2.40 million baht,

* Total liabilities in 2017 were 164.63 million baht, an increase of 1.74 million baht from 162.89 million baht in 2016. Current
liabilities increased by 26% when compared to the previous year, or an increase of 22.96 million baht from 87.72 million baht
in 2016 to 110.68 million baht in 2017. This represented the increment in account payable by 38% when compared to the
previous year, or an increase of 26.16 million baht from 69.50 million baht in 2016 to 95.66 million baht in 2017. Non-current
liabilities decreased of 21.22 million baht from 75.16 million baht in 2016 to 53.94 million baht in 2017, a decrease of 28%.
This represented the reduction of provisions for legal claims 25.78 million baht from 54.05 million baht in 2016 to 28.27 million
baht in 2017, a decrease of 48%.

Statement of Financial Performance in 2017 recorded the total revenues from operations at 1,009.34 million baht, total operating expenses at
1,073.76 million baht, and non-operating income at 0.25 million baht. The revenues lower expenses in 2017 at 64.16 million baht, a decrease from
2016 - which was recorded at 0.07 million baht — to 64.23 million baht.

 Total revenues from operations decrease by 4% or a decrease of 39.47 million baht from 1,048.81 million baht in 2016 to
1,009.34 million baht in 2017 per the 4% reduction of Government budget appropriations from 1,029.54 million baht to 992.33
million baht. The income from registration fee for exhibition participation reduced by 149% from 10.07 million baht to 8.62
million baht, the interest income from deposits at financial institutions reduced by 11% from 7.31 million baht to 6.53 million baht,
and the income from registration fee for seminar participation decreased by 4% from 1.71 million baht to 1.65 million baht.
Nevertheless, the other income increased by 17% from 0.19 million baht to 0.22 million baht.

- Total operating expenses in 2017 increased by 2% when compared to the previous year, or an increase of 1,048.85 million baht
to 1,073.76 million baht. This was because of the increment in personnel expenses increased by 13% or 18.57 million baht,
marketing and promotion expenses increased by 1% or 5.39 million baht and grants increased by 2% or 3.65 million baht when
compared to the previous year. Nevertheless, depreciation and amortisation decreased by 13% or 3.30 million baht when
compared to the previous year.

THAILAND CONVENTION & EXHIBITION BUREAU
114 (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION) ANNUAL REPORT 2017




UNJIASI:KIUNISIJU

MAAsEinULdwn e sULEnsgIuEnensiu Tul 2560 Aunindgvdves aauu. wihiu 585.93 &uum anasainy 2559 13w 64.17 EUUW e
anas 10% laganuvemanunanduningsianas 62.42 Suunuazvilduinmu 1.74 Suum

- Bun¥wdiviavun Wl 2560 Wiy 750.56 E1uum Feaeasmnnd 2559 avhiu 812.98 duum Aunsndvauiouanas 8% enBsuilsuiidneu
awmnnRuantazensisuyintuan anaiin 606.87 druum ull 2559 1l 544.26 Eruum Tud 2560 luduvesduninduyuiFoudy
anasan 14.24 &uwilul 2559 1l 13.23 Euuwilud 2560 wavduvindlimuiouanas 8% Tnsavmnainnisanasiesdunindlaisishm 9%
WenBeuiisuiulineu viieanas 3.03 &uum wazgunsalanas 8% WeiSeuiisuiulneu visanas 2.40 Suum

- viAustanun Tl 2560 Wity 164.63 uum ity 1.78 Swuumannd 2559 Faviiu 162.89 Sy stBunudoudeiy 26% deweuiieu
futiieu vieuiuduniiiy 22.96 duuw 90 87.72 Swumilud 2559 18y 110,68 Euuwilud 2560 anvmenanmsiivturesdmil 38%
deiBeuiibuifulineu vieuiaity 26.16 Svuum a1n 69.50 Suumlul 2559 1T 95.66 mumiluil 2560 luduvemilaulivansuaeamn o
21.22 w90 75.16 Sl 2559 W 53.94 Suumlul 2560 Aniuanas 289% auvmsnaInmsanasmesUsBanuNsHtAuARTiasEaIg
nnvane Baanas 25.78 E1uum 10 54.05 Euuwilud 2559 W 28.27 Euuwilud 2560 Andiuanas 48%

wan1sALiueu sn8leannmsaiiuaut 2560 Windu 1,009.34 §1uUm AI1eaInmsaLiueag winiu 1,073.76 auum wazsielrauiildlannainns
fiuau whiu 0.25 Suumn vhili sieldmndianldneansd 2560 winfiu 64.16 Suum anasnt 2559 B 0.07 duum Wi 64.23 Suum

- s1eldannnsadiueu anas 4% viseanas 39.47 &uum 91n 1,048.81 amumiluil 2559 1 1,009.34 druumlud 2560 esanseldanndu
UUsEINANAY 4% 10 1,029.54 vy 992.33 duum sneldmamaidoudnisinnuiingsanisanas 14% 310 10.07 dwumidu 8.62 au
v selannnendoturinantiunisiu anas 11% 210 7.31 uumiiy 6.53 Suum wessigldannsineusudiuunanas 4% 910 1.71 &1
vy 1.65 §nuum Tnesai swlﬁ?ﬁmﬁm%u 17% 911 0.19 vy 0.22 duum

- Anlsneaannsediue gl 2560 iy 2% Luat,ﬂi&mm&mﬂuﬂﬂau Taewfidiuann 1,048, 85 mummﬂu L,073.76 AMuUm mmmuaﬂmﬂ
mnwmumamﬂmmamummﬂsmmu 13% vidoLiAy 18.57 &uum mﬂmmauaim'ﬁmmm Wi 1% VoL 5.39 &uum wavArliany
Lquqﬂmummu 2% videAy 3.65 AU WewSsudieuiutiieu Tnesiil Audeusiauazmdasinganas 13% wisanas 3.30 duum e
WisuisuiuUneu

sragnuUs=douds=utu w.A. 2560
ddnaudiasumsinus=guuazinssAMs (9IANISUKIBU) 115




Report of the Operations of TCEB'’s

The Audit Committee was appointed by the Board of Directors of TCEB according to the order no. 3/2017 dated 16 May 2017, namely:

1. Mr. Thongchai Sridama Chairman
2. Ms. Supawan Tanomkieatipume Committee
3. Assistant Professor Sopapan Amatadecha Committee
4. Mr. Napong Sirikantayakul Committee
5. Mrs. Jariya Muangkaew Committee
6. Assistant Professor Dr. Nipapan Kuwisetsang Committee

The Internal Audit Director was also appointed as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

During Fiscal 2017, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) managed by its Board of Directors, appointed the Audit
Committee to act as the Subcommittee for Audit and Evaluation on 16 May 2017. The appointment was in compliance with the Public Organi-
zation Act, B.E. 2542 (1999) and the Public Organization Act (No. 2), B.E. 2559 (2016), which was further amended that the component of the Audit

Committee consists of the previous group of Subcommittee for Audit and Evaluation.

In Fiscal 2017, the Audit Committee performed its duties and scope of responsibility assigned by the Board of Directors of TCEB and in accordance
with the Audit Committee charter. The Audit Committee held a total of 11 meetings, six of which were held with the Subcommittee for Audit and
Evaluation. The meetings by agendas were held with TCEB’s executives, internal auditors, and auditors. The Audit Committee reported the performance

to the Board of Directors of TCEB on a quarterly basis.
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Report of the Operations of TCEB's

The key performances can be summarised as follows:

1. Financial reports and accounting verification: The Audit Committee
verified the annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended 30
September 2016 with the Accounting and Finance Department and the
auditors to ensure that the financial reports of TCEB were accurate and
in accordance with the regulations of financial law and the verified
accounting standards, as well as the adequacy and reliability of disclosure
of TCEB’s information. Recommendations were made for TCEB to
accelerate the reduction of the balance of outstanding debts from
advance borrowings and performance bonds, as well as preparing the
budget expenditure control plan and the acceleration of disbursement
- all of which would enhance efficient budget management and ensure
maximum benefit.

2. Verification of adequacy of the internal control system: In accordance
with the State Audit Commission’s Regulations, the Audit Committee
verified the annual report of internal control and the quarterly report of
internal control assessment to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of
TCEB’s internal control system and risk management, together with
covering significant risk factors and setting up an efficient risk management
plan and guidelines which must be in line with the internal control
standards. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to TCEB
for better performance.

3. Verification of performance in compliance with law, rules, regulations,
the Cabinet’s resolutions, announcement and orders related to the operations:
In compliance with the Regulations on Procurement, the Audit Committee
verified and examined the implementation and the contract management
to be accurate and complied with the internal control practices. The
Audit Committee also verified the budget disbursement and made further
recommendations for TCEB in supervising and monitoring approval on
working abroad of employees, which must be in line with the regulations.

4. Verification of overall operations: The Audit Committee verified the
approaches to TCEB operations assessment and satisfaction survey on
TCEB services, and made recommendations to develop TCEB’s efficient
operations. The Audit Committee further advised TCEB to prepare project
work plans of each department, which must be in line with the main
mission of TCEB.
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5. The charter of the TCEB’s Audit Committee was set up in line with
the scope of responsibility of TCEB. The Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the charter of the Internal Audit Department, together with
making self-assessment to ensure that the operations of the Audit
Committee complied with the charter of the TCEB’s Audit Committee,
good corporate governance practices, and code of ethics in order to
maintain the efficient internal control system.

6. Follow-up and supervision of the operations of the Internal Audit
Department to be in compliance with the internal audit plan: The Audit
Committee verified and approved the strategic audit plan and the internal
audit plan for the Fiscal 2018. Recommendations were made for TCEB to
focus on the internal audit plan and follow up modifications in line with
the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Department. The Audit Committee also placed importance on the
verification of the internal audit report, allocation of personnel, budget,
training and development of internal auditors, as well as follow-up of the
operations in line with the recommendations and the approved internal
audit plan so as to develop efficient and effective operations of the
Internal Audit Department.

In summary, the Audit Committee has performed its duty independently
in compliance with the charter and had the opinion that TCEB has
implemented its tasks in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and has had the appropriate internal control system and risk
management plans to ensure that its operations achieved goals set
by the Board of Directors of TCEB.

(Mr. Thongchai Sridama)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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